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Corporate Information (Continued)

NREHE)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Room 108

No. 45 Xinrong North Street
Xihongmen, Daxing District
Beijing, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two, Times Square
1 Matheson Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
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PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited™ete
17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Note: With effect from 15 August 2022, the address of the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company has been changed from
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong to 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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Financial Highlights
MBRHE

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS EERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HL=EE

2022 2021
—E-—E —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTFT AR¥TIT

Revenue e 343,498 336,828
Gross profit EH 67,023 89,630
Net (loss)/profit F(ER),/FE (51,872) 31,207
(Loss)/Earnings per share (RMB cent) BR(ER) BIARES)
— Basic —H K (12.81) 7.58
Revenue Gross profit Net profit
Y zs ER RFE
RMEB’000 RMEB’000 RMEB’000
AR¥T T AREF T ARBF T
350,000 100,000 40,000
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50,000}
-50,000 |-
0 0 -60,000 -
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

MREEGE)

THE BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL REVENUE BY TYPE

OF SERVICES

BRI A E 7 4 U 53 B AR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2022 2021

—EC-CF T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARTFT

Property management services MEE IR RS 290,233 259,197

Property developer related services V)2 BB RE AR S 18,773 43,462

Value-added services BERS 34,492 34,169

Total @t 343,498 336,828
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET EEEERREE

As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H

2022 2021

B8 —E-—fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Total assets BEE 416,253 469,568

Total liabilities ma s 203,479 204,999

Total equity arens 212,774 264,569
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
terms shall have the meanings set out below.

“AGM”
[BRRBFRE

“Articles of Association”
[E=f248A) ]
“Audit Committee”

[EZZBE]

“Beijing Herun”

MEm&HE]

“Beijing Hongkun”

[ FE 3 |
“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[EFw |

“Company” or “our Company”

EAVNSIIEANCTE

“Corporate Governance Code”

[EERTAl

Definitions

Bx

RAFHRA - BXERBMEEN A TH
REATIIEE -

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
B BITH AR RIRFBFERE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company
RAREIEETME T R = 1240 R)

the Board committee established by the Board to supervise the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting procedures and the Company’s financial
statements review

HEFERUNEFLZES  AREEARNANEA NP BRERFALAK
NANPBRRES

Beijing Herun Asset Management Company Limited* (It R & BHEEEEA
R/ 7)), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on 13 November 2013 and owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao and Ms. Wu Hong as
to 99% and 1%, respectively

tRABEEERERAR  — MR _ZE—=F+—A+=HREPREE
FRAEERAT - RABESREERRITZE5RIHEHEI9% K%

Beijing Hongkun Property Management Company Limited* (1t 5% i) 3
EIEF R A A, alimited liability company established under the laws of
the PRC on 16 July 2010 and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our
Company

b FEEYEERAER AR — MR _ZE—ZFL A+ NBIREPBIEERK
VHERRQT  RARRNEEZEE2EWERR

the board of directors of our Company
KARERE

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (/& 2 &£ B #E R AR A &l), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 26
March 2019

BEESEZERARAR  —HARZZE-—NF=ZAZTBERSHSTMK
S EVEREBR AT

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules
EARAIN SR AP B (3 E VR <A

- BEEBRRERAT —B-—FEH

* D

O
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Definitions (Continued)

Bx(AE)

“Deed of Acting in Concert”

[—BT824

“Directors”

(%]

“GFA”

[4RFZEEEAE ]

“Group”, “Ye Xing Group”, “
“we” or “us”

(AR [5£8]  [EEEE IR

our Group”,

“Hongkun Group”
[IEimEE |

“Hongkun Jituan”

[HimEERE |

“Jiangsu Wanhao”

[T#E s

“Listing”

[ 7]

“Listing Date”

[ LA H

“Listing Rules”

[ s Al

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

the deed of acting in concert dated 24 July 2019 and executed by Mr.
Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin whereby they confirmed
their acting in concert arrangements as more particularly set out in
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders and Parent Group — Our
Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Acting in Concert” in the Prospectus. Ms.
Wu Hong is Mr. Zhao Bin’s spouse and Mr. Zhao Weihao is their son. They
are together our controlling Shareholders

MEESEE  RUKTMEWSEFENERR_ZE-NFLAZTHAE
B—BITEIRY - Bt - REBR T REN BT LH - EEFEHNA
PR E A2 A e[ B 22 A A RN B £= [ O R AR — TR PR FE AR IR IR — — BT 312240
oo RETL T ZEWRAENRME  BREFRELERMANTE T - REHLRERK
IR AR R

the directors of our Company

RARMES

gross floor area
HREEE

our Company and our subsidiaries, and Chinese entities controlled by the
Company through contractual arrangements
RRE - HB AR RERE TR ARRIEHIN P B

Hongkun Jituan and its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures
BHEERRREMBAR  BEARIMEEDRE

o>
]

Hongkun Jituan Company Limited* (& # & B B BR A 7]), a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on 15 September 2014
and wholly-owned by Beijing Herun

BHEBERAT - —ARZZE—NFNATHABREFEEEKIHBR
ARARBAILLREHEEHRE

Jiangsu Wanhao Property Management Co., Ltd.* (T# &= WERBER
73 A)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 24 September
2003
TEHBEYERBERAA
UHERBEEAT

—ERZEZ=FNA Z+H BB

the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 13 March 2020
RRRNBROR - Z - TBF=A+=AEBAER LT

13 March 2020, being the date on which the shares of the Company were
listed on the Stock Exchange
ZZETF=R+=R - AIARRERGRBAAT L ey B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time
BEBMERHMERARFEF LR - L TRHER SR



“Model Code”
[1E%E<PR
“Parent Group”
B E |

“PRC”

(e

“Prospectus”
[BRERR]
“Reporting Period”
[ ¥ HR

“RMB”
[ARE ]

“SFO”
EH LA G

“Shareholders”

[A&3R ]
“Shares”
[ &5

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P

“Tianjin Hongsheng”

[ KRB

*

For identification purposes only

Definitions (Continued)

E=(E)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FARBIMER0PTE R F BT AERETESF R HNFAESTE

Beijing Herun and its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures
bR aEREMEAR  BERRIREERE

the People’s Republic of China, for the purposes of this annual report,
does not include the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China, the Macao Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
FEARKNE  BAFERSHE @ TEEBEPEAREMBEE BT
@ PEARKMEDRFIRFRIITIRE R & /&

the prospectus dated 28 February 2020 issued by the Company, which
relates to the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AARTIEMARA—Z-_TE-_A—+/\BNBRER  RAEBEERH
REEAZ PR ER BT

for the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

China’s lawful currency

TEIEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
B & EE &R

holders of the Shares
AGEST=PN

ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company
R EIRRA R FRRFEEO.01 LAY AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARHMBRAA

Tianjin Hongsheng Property Services Company Limited* (FK;&38 5% ¥ % AR5
BR/AR]), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on 27 December 2013 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REBEWEREBRAT - —HARZE—=F+ A=+ AREHBEE
BIKBRAT - RARNATNEZENBAT

* EEE
- BEEBRRERAT —B-—FEH
- )
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2022 Honors and Awards
R FRERRE

@

LRGP GEHOD
2022+ IR 55 4 R i L 3055

2022 Top 30 Branded Property Management Companies in North China

IERISHRIRF L E IR AR AT

iy
NG Py

We won the honor “2022 Top 30 Branded Property Management Companies in North China”
B[ 20227 B 25 AR 5 EE AL b (B 3£ 3058

TR 9GO
2022 E TR 55 A L

2022 Quality Leading Companies of China in Property Service

Jb s L SR IRA T

4

ZO==&+-A

We won the honor “2022 Quality Leading Companies of China in Property Service”

SR 2022 B E MR RGBSR X

20224 KIEFEBYUL RS HTOPI0EN

| e s |

S8 =)

We won the honor “2022 Top 10 Service Power Property Management Companies in North China’

SRIE 2022 AL R I (X =W RIS HTOP101 % |

202243 R MW RS HIFH AR

LRI ERERAT

“Hongkun Value Town” project won the “2022 Service Power Benchmark project in North China”

[MRime b ElA 10 B &% [ 2022 b [& B iR 5 N iRATIE A
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Dear Shareholders and friends who are interested in Ye Xing Group, | am
honored to present the 2022 Annual Report of Ye Xing Group on behalf of
the Company and the Board of Directors.

In 2022, the property management industry is constantly facing
challenges. From epidemic prevention and control to epidemic prevention
optimization, from a cold trading atmosphere in the industry, to falling
into a trough, and then gradually recovering. Whether in the general
environment or in the capital market, the rapid changes have brought
considerable impact to the Group.

Faced with many external environmental challenges such as the downturn
in the real estate industry and the repeated outbreak of the epidemic, the
Group adheres to its original intention, reorganizes internal and external
risks, formulates strategic policies based on the situation, and takes
multiple measures such as stable and stable measures and improving
management efficiency to quickly and actively respond to the changing
external environment.

ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT AND
STRATEGY

In order to fulfill the mission of “creating an enjoyable living environment”
GEAMIMEMFL), Ye Xing Group focuses on creating the best customer
experience and becoming a service provider for a better life. The
Company successfully achieved the strategic model of “Service+
Six Ecosystems”, namely “Cultural Ecosystem, Financial Ecosystem,
Community Ecosystem, Health Ecosystem, Business Ecosystem and
Education Ecosystem” after 18 years of robust development.

The Group continues to forge ahead to improve service quality. We had
successively established a set of precise and strict quality standards with
requirement of interference-free, time-difference-free, dead-angle-free,
and distance-free.

In terms of market expansion, the Group will focuses on high-quality
expansion, with high standard property services and the widespread
application of intelligent products as its core strategy, actively seeking
cooperation opportunities with professional and comprehensive service
companies. In addition to expanding comprehensive service projects, we
also attach importance to specialized services and actively explore and
undertake professional service project opportunities. At the same time, we
will continue to deepen our efforts in the Greater Bay Area, with a focus
on expanding the Yangtze River Delta economic circle and the “Beijing
Big Seven Ring” economic circle. We will screen projects that meet the
standards for external expansion, concentrate our efforts on targeting the
bullseye, and contribute to scale.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERHE(R)

In exploring the field of value-added services, Facing the consumption
habits of the new generation of “residential economy”, the Group
continues to explore the field of value-added services, seize the
market segments, and combine community life scenarios, market
needs, and residence needs to innovate and launch professional
property management, asset services, life services and enterprise
services, providing customized products and services for residence
and customers, to give a good performance in the “last 100 meters” of
property management.

In the process of intelligence, we adhere to the development direction of
digitization and intelligence, combining of “Internet+” to integrate online
and offline resources for more diversified services, and expands services
to every segment with the power of technology. We continuously invest
on iterating and upgrading Hongkunhui* (3§ %), the existing one-stop
online service platform, H-Butler* (% & 2 ), a mobile application, and other
automated technology solutions such as intelligent parking systems,
in order to timely response to owners’ maintenance needs, enhance
maintenance efficiency with smart dispatching of maintenance work
orders as well as provide owners with high-quality maintenance services
focusing on user experience, attending to owners’ lives anytime and
anywhere.

ANNUAL RESULTS IN 2022

In 2022, the Company achieved revenue of approximately RMB343.5
million, an increase of about 2.0% year on year; realized gross profit of
approximately RMB67.0 million, representing a decrease of about 25.2%
year on year; and realized net loss approximately RMB51.9 million (2021:
net profit approximately RMB31.2 million). The gross profit margin in 2022
was 19.5%, representing a decrease of 7.1 percentage points compared
with 2021.

As of the end of 2022, the Group’s contracted GFA was approximately
15.0 million square meters, and the total revenue-bearing GFA under
management exceeded 12.4 million sg.m., representing an increase of
5.4% and 5.1% compared with 2021, respectively; the number of the
Company’s managed residential property projects was 56, with a total
revenue-bearing GFA of 11.2 million sg.m., accounting for 90.2% of
total revenue-bearing GFA; and the number of the Company’s managed
non-residential property projects was 19, with a total revenue bearing
GFA of 1.2 million square meters, accounting for 9.8% of total revenue
bearing GFA. The non-residential property projects include shopping
malls, office buildings, industrial parks and hospitals.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ‘\
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FUTURE OUTLOOK: ACHIEVING HIGH-QUALITY
GROWTH

In 2023, the trend of major changes in the industry will become more
apparent, posing greater challenges for our upward development. Only
by working hard can we usher in a sunny journey.

We will ensure quality while expanding in scale. Currently, the property
industry is showing long-term improvement and has great potential
for the future. the Group will continue to focus on the development
opportunities brought by the industry and actively expand market space.
While pursuing market scale development, we adhere to the core of basic
services, focus on building a customer-centric standardized service
system, steadily improve service quality, firmly establish the foundation of
enterprise operation, and meet people’s growing living needs.

In 20283, we will continuously add value to customer needs. Developing
value-added service business is the trend of the times. Apart from basic
property management, the Group will continuously explore and satisfy the
diversified needs of customers, extend more value-added services, and
fulfill the mission of “creating an enjoyable living environment”.

Looking at the current situation, the Group will adhere to a market-oriented
approach, focusing on high-quality expansion, from pursuing scale to
pursuing efficiency. Adhering to the strategic direction, suitable for brand
positioning, reasonable profits, value-added space, and healthy cash
flow, the expansion of scale will support the company’s sustainable and
high-quality scale development. In a constantly changing environment,
the company has the confidence to assume corporate responsibility,
smoothly transition, and provide better performance to shareholders.

EREHE(R)

ARRE - BERAmENEER

MRIFB_=F  TEREENBIEE NH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Overview

The Group is a reputable property management service provider offering
comprehensive property management and related services for residential
and non-residential properties in the PRC. Its parent group, Hongkun
Group, is a leading property developer in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region and has been ranked among the Top 100 Property Developers in
the PRC* (FEIEHER ¥ H ). The Group has been ranked one of
the Top 100 Property Management Companies in the PRC* (/1 B#) % iR 7%
A58 %) by China Index Academy* (FF BIF5EH 72k for six consecutive
years since 2016. Through upholding the Group’s service philosophy
of “creating an enjoyable living environment (& A 9 & &8 5 1)’ and
the dedication to the Group’s core values of “friendliness, persistence,
innovation and excellence” in delivering its services, the Group envisions
to become an outstanding property management service provider in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided property management
services to properties spanning across 17 cities in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region, Hainan Province, Hubei Province, Anhui Province, Jiangsu
Province, Shaanxi Province, Jiangxi Province, Guangdong Province and
Shanghai, managing a total revenue-bearing GFA of approximately 12.4
million sg.m., comprising 56 residential properties (with over 86,000 units
in total) and 19 non-residential properties.

In 2022, the Company achieved revenue of approximately RMB343.5
million, an increase of about 2.0% year on year; realized gross profit
of approximately RMB67.0 million, a decrease of about 25.2% year
on year. The total loss and other comprehensive loss amounted to
approximately RMB51.9 million. The gross profit margin in 2022 was
19.5%, representing a decrease of 7.1 percentage points as compared
with 2021, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Business Overview (Continued)

As of the end of 2022, the Group’s contracted GFA was approximately
15.0 million sg.m., and the total revenue-bearing GFA under management
exceeded 12.4 million sg.m., representing an increase of 5.4% and
5.1% compared with 2021, respectively; the number of the Company’s
managed residential property projects was 56, with a total revenue-
bearing GFA of 11.2 million sg.m., accounting for 90.2% of total revenue-
bearing GFA; the number of the Company’s managed non-residential
property projects was 19, with a total revenue-bearing GFA of 1.2 million
sg.m., accounting for 9.8% of the total revenue-bearing GFA.

The table below sets forth our (i) contracted GFA; (ii) revenue-bearing
GFA; and (iii) number of properties under our management in relation to
the properties for which we had commenced our provision of property
management services, as at the dates indicated:

EEEWED ()

EERE(E)
EBHE(E)

HEZT-FK  AEBMHASHMEESER
BHOAB1L0EET K  ERBNGEEE
BEERI1I2488F K - AT =—F5H
R AN5.4% K5.1% « NAREE(EEEE56
& - AR EEEEREAII2BEF K 15
MU EEEEM0.2% + ARAIEEIEE
EHE 19 - BUREEERER12BEEFH
Ko BB EEEER.8% ©

TREIIANFTTBEKMB()E LB EEE
1 (NBREEEmE - R(INERMEEME
(BBEMEHRBAEREMESEREHNYME
mE)&E :

As at 31 December

R+=H=+—H~
2022 2021

—EC 8 —E-—4F
Residential Properties (E2==17F 4
Contracted GFA ("000 sq.m.) (Note) G RBREmME(TFF5 oK) (BEE) 13,208 12,507
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) B BREEE(TFF 5 oK) 11,205 10,670
Number of properties managed T EmESE 56 53
Non-residential Properties FEEWE
Contracted GFA ("000 sq.m.) (Note) A RBREmME(TFFH oK) (BEE) 1,743 1,676
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) RIS LM (FFEH oK) 1,214 1,147
Number of properties managed T EmESE 19 20
Total BEr
Contracted GFA ("000 sq.m.) (Note) A RBREmME(TFFH oK) (BEE) 14,951 14,183
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) ISR (FFEr oK) 12,419 11,817
Number of properties managed EEmESE 75 73

Note: Contracted GFA refers to the total GFA managed and the total GFA to
be managed by the Group under signed property management service

agreements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As the real estate industry enters the era of eliminating the weak and
retaining the strong, the property management industry, which is
heavily relying on the real estate industry, has also entered the year of
comprehensive retraining. The reduction of capital fever, the cooling of
listing enthusiasm, and the increase of homogenization of competition
are all urging property management companies to return to the service
essence of the property management industry. The industry no longer
blindly pursues rapid expansion of scale, and instead pursues high-
quality, and cost-effective sustainable development. The aim of the
Group is to focus on high-quality development, take meeting the growing
needs of the people for a better life as the starting point and foothold,
and continuously improve the people’s sense of gain, happiness, and
security, meeting the expectations of residents and customers.

Focus on quality control management and consolidate
the foundation of quality

The Group has always followed the principle of customer service
orientation, quality service as the foundation, with intelligent application
and service standards excellence, to keep breaking through traditional
service boundaries and creating more possibilities for widely and deeply
expansion of living services.

In 2022, in terms of quality improvement, the Group continued to forge
ahead. We had successively established a set of precise and strict quality
standards with requirement of interference-free, time-difference-free,
dead-angle-free, and distance-free. The Group has been continuously
exploring public area experiences, conducting standardized service
mechanism such as “quality improvement special program”, included
services such as “housekeeper visit”, “project manager reception day”,
“residence convenience service”, and “400 one-stop call center”, which
allows us to evoke a felling of meticulous and considerate care to our
residence, both in the handling of emergencies or in the greetings of
family members, which is the original intention of the Group to construct a
better living, and is also our responsibility and mission.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Focus on quality control management and consolidate
the foundation of quality (Continued)

In 2023, the Group will continue to focus on quality control management,
consolidate the foundation of quality, uphold the spirit of “ingenuity”, to
build up our brand. We will simultaneously expand our scale both online
and offline, to achieve healthy growth. With the application of technology,
we can build energy, integrate resources, create high-quality products,
make full use of intelligent technology means, further strengthen the
construction of the “intelligent ecosystem”, cooperate with the market for
win-win results, and share the high-quality service of the Group with more
customers.

Value-added service, endowing new quality life

Facing the consumption habits of the new generation of “residential
economy”, the Group continues to explore the field of value-added
services, seize the market segments, and combine community life
scenarios, market needs, and residence needs to innovate and launch
professional property management, asset services, life services and
enterprise services, providing customized products and services for
residence and customers, to give a good performance in the “last 100
meters” of property management.

Taking community retailing as an example, the Group has launched a
sub-brand, called “gift shopping” to meet the needs of residences. We
have irregularly launched seasonal blockbuster products through online
and offline methods such as community bazaars, WeChat Apps, and
online shopping malls, bringing tangible convenience and benefits to
residence. Focusing on the ecological service circle of community life,
by providing comprehensive and convenient services to residences,
we continuously shorten the distance with them, improve trust and
satisfaction, and help increase value-added income.

In the past two years, with the continuous introduction of favorable policies
by the government, popular services such as elderly care, housekeeping,
and beauty housing have emerged, and the development of value-added
services of the Group has also ushered in new opportunities.

In 2023, the Group will continue to improve community life services and
value-added services based on the full cycle service needs of business,
such as home service, car wash service, beauty home business,
community new retail, convenient repairment, housing trusteeship, vehicle
services, space operations, welfare fairs, to optimize and integrate
business resources continually. Adhere to professionalism, continue
to explore the “property management service and society life service”
model, and create a new and better life for residences.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Market oriented, focusing on expansion with quality

In the future, as the industry enters a mature market, the era of
independent development of the property management industry has
arrived. How to walk out of the path of self-development without relying on
real estate parent group or capital market is the situation the industry will
face in the future. After 20 years of development, the Group has gradually
grown from a residential property management department owned by
developers in the past to a market-oriented comprehensive business
service enterprise with independent expansion capabilities. Currently,
the Group has formed a nationwide layout centered in Beijing, covering
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the
Greater Bay Area, and the Hainan Free Trade Zone, providing exclusive
services to 80,000 residences.

In the future, the Group will adhere to market orientation, focus on quality
expansion, from pursuing scale to pursuing cost efficiency, and adhere
to the principle that scale expansion conforms to strategic direction, is
suitable for brand positioning, has reasonable profits, has value-added
space and healthy cash flow, to support our long-term and sustainable
scale growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of Operations

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from property management
services, property developer related services and value-added services.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB343.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB6.7 million or approximately 2.0% as compared to
that of approximately RMB336.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue generated
from property management services, property developer related services
and value-added services contributed 84.5%, 5.5% and 10.0% to the total
revenue, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Results of Operations (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by type of
services for the periods indicated:

EEEWED ()

B #s e R ()
%« ;E Lb\>

TREIIRATREE R PHR RIS AL S D
Yesn AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BHLEE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARYFT % N %
Property management MEEIR R
services 290,233 84.5 259,197 77.0
Property developer-related #7123 248 28 AR 75
services 18,773 5.5 43,462 12.9
Value-added services A BRTS 34,492 10.0 34,169 10.1
Total st 343,498 100.0 336,828 100.0
Property Management Services VSR

The revenue generated from property management services increased
by approximately RMB31.0 million year on year, or about 12.0%. Revenue
generated from residential properties increased by approximately
RMB39.4 million or approximately 20.2%, mainly due to (i) the fully
reflected contribution of property management fees from those residential
property projects delivered in the second half of 2021 and the 15
residential property projects under management by Jiangsu Wanhao,
a subsidiary that we newly acquired in 2021; and (ii) 3 newly delivered
residential properties in the year, which generated a total revenue of
approximately RMB3.9 million. Revenue generated from non-residential
properties decreased by approximately RMB8.4 million or approximately
13.1%, primarily because 1 non-residential property was newly acquired
during the year; the service agreements of 2 non-residential properties
expired during the year but not extended by us, and the disposal of a
subsidiary Tianjin Hongsheng which holds 2 non-residential properties
with under expectation performance in 2021 in order to optimize our
properties portfolio under management. The GFA under management
increased from 11.8 million sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2021
to 12.4 million sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2022.

MEEERBELENRSZFEMHOARE
31.0BETT » 3412.0% ° EFEWENU
BN AREI04FETLHL202% @ 2
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Results of Operations (Continued)

Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing

GFA and our revenue derived from the property management services by
type of properties as at the dates indicated and for the periods indicated:

$o %5 [ R ()
PR ER R (R)
TREFIRATR B E RN AR BRI R M

SEEmMEIYEEERBEERYEEL
S EARAR -

As at/Year ended 31 December

RT=R=t-R/BEZALEE

2022 2021
—ECCE —EI-F
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
BhERETR i AlsrgnE W
1000 sq.m. %  RMB'000 %  '000sg.m. % RMB'000 %
FEIH % AREFL % FEIA % ARKFT %
Residential properties fremg 11,204 902 234,597 808 10,670 903 195,230 75.3
Non-residential properties FEEME 1,215 98 55,636 19.2 1147 9.7 63,967 4.7
12,419 100.0 290,233 100.0 1817 100.0 259,197 100.0

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from property management services by
type of property developers as at the dates indicated and for the periods

TREFIRATR B KR AR B R P A U
SRR EEERGRSRY R
RAARALEI ) By ARAT

indicated:
As at/Year ended 31 December
Wt=R=t-B/BEHALEE
2022 2021
k- St “EI-F
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
BhERETR Wi BURRERE W

1000 sq.m. %  RMB'000 %  '000sg.m. % RMB000 %
FEIH % AREFL % FEIA % ARKFT %
Hongkun Group e 9,447 76.1 258,088 889 9,144 774 245,650 948
Third party property developers £=7£H%H 2972 29 32,145 14 2673 286 13547 52
12,419 100.0 290,233 100.0 1817 100.0 259,197 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Results of Operations (Continued)

Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from property management services by

geographic coverage as at the dates indicated and for the periods
indicated:

EEEWED ()

Fr 5 A (48

RERE(E)

M=

MEEERH% (R)

TREFIRATR BB N AR B R R P A U
REEHBLYEEERB R GEMIEES
HES D WP

As at/Year ended 31 December

WroA=t-B/BEZALER

2022 2021
—ECCE —EC-F
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
BYREEER s BYEEEER e

'000 sq.m. % RMB’000 % 000 sg.m. % RMB’000 %
FEBK % AREFZ % FEA % AREfT %
Beijing bl 2,776 224 98,752 34.0 2,703 22.9% 95,360 368
Tianjin R 1,487 12,0 45,648 15.7 1,331 11.2% 48,645 18.7
Hebei Province it 3,519 28.3 78,912 2712 3426 29.0% 72,535 28.0
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region REENE 7,182 62.7 223,312 76.9 7,460 63.1% 216,540 835
Hainan Province el 504 48 9,131 32 515 4.3% 8,688 34
Hubei Province isiA] 784 6.3 16,816 58 504 4.3% 13,149 5.1
Shaanxi Province Sk 42 03 2,704 09 4 0.3% 2,756 11
Anhui Province g 379 31 5,620 19 470 4.0% 403 16
Jiangsu Province TH% 2,713 218 30,289 105 2713 23.0% 12,040 46
Shanghai L& 92 0.7 1,537 05 92 0.8% 1437 06
Jiangxi Province ki 21 0.2 362 04 2 0.2% 355 0.1
Guangdong Province ERE 12 04 462 0.2 - - - -
12,419 100.0 290,233 100.0 11,817 100% 259,197 100.0

Property Developer-related Services L Ei SR SR S

Due to the downturn of China’s real estate market, the revenue generated
from property developer related services decreased by approximately
RMB24.7 million or about 56.8% from approximately RMB43.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB18.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHERBMEMSRINTE  HNEFRED
HEREEENRERBEZE S =—F+=
A=+ —BLEFEMNHARKISSAETLR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Results of Operations (Continued)

Property Developer-related Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of number of property
developer related services projects and our revenue derived from

property developer related services by geographic coverage as at the
dates indicated and for the periods indicated:

$o %5 [ R ()
VELEGEEE ) AE )
TRBFIRAR B BRI FTR AR5

EAER ARSI B A LR MR T EAE
BRI W IR B A S E &) 0 A4 -

As at/Year ended 31 December

MtZA=t+-B/BEZALEE

2022 2021
—EB-CE 2%
Number of Number of
projects Revenue projects Revenue
BEEA & HEHE Yeza
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETT % ARETFT %
Beijing 5197 2 273 15 1 4,859 11.2
Tianjin X 6 5,510 29.4 4 10,676 245
Hebei Province I 9 8,150 434 11 21259 49.0
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region REEMR 17 13,933 743 16 36,794 847
Hainan Province BEE 1 823 4.4 1 951 22
Hubei Province HitE 2 1,415 7.5 2 3,086 71
Jiangsu Province LEA - - - 1 1,008 23
Anhui Province ZHE 1 2,014 10.7 1 52 0.1
Guangdong Province ER4 1 588 3.1 1 1,571 36
22 18,773 100.0 22 43,462 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWEIN(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B % G (7))
Results of Operations (Continued) KO AR (48)
Value-added Services B PR

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue derived from TREH AT HARE T FIA9 1L (& PR 7% W 2= 59
our value-added services for the periods indicated: AR4H :

Year ended 31 December

R+=—B=+—HB HBEZBLFE

2022 2021
—E;C-F T4
Revenue Revenue
g as
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥FT % ARBFIT %

Home living services REEERSG (H7F1)

(Note 1) 8,186 23.7 12,667 37.1

Leasing of common areas A LE L (H1£2)

(Note 2) 25,019 72.6 20,540 60.1

Others Hth 1,287 3.7 962 2.8

34,492 100.0 34,169 100.0

Notes: Htat -

(1) Our home living services primarily included our collection of electricity tariffs, (1) EMORBLEERBEEZZEBFEHRMABEE
air-conditioning and heating fees, household repair and maintenance service & EHMEEE  mRMEENEERIE
provided to property owners and residents of our managed residential or FEMENEEREFPRHREEERIRE
non-residential properties. AR5 °

(2)  Our leasing of common areas primarily represented the leasing of certain (2 BMHEEAKERSFZREERMAEE
common areas of our managed residential or non-residential properties FEIFEENENETARESTFE=F
to third-party services providers for setting up advertisement lightboxes, RAGEEEURLEEEM  ZBKEE
distilled water vending machines, screens in lifts and other facilities. - BERTIREE N EALRNE -

The revenue generated from value-added services increased slightly by BERBEENRGHEE S -—F+=
approximately RMBO0.3 million or about 0.9% from approximately RMB34.2 A=+—HILFENNARKEI42BEETE
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB34.5 EMHARKOIBEETLHILN0INEHE

million for the year ended 31 December 2022, L HFFT AT HLEFEMNNARE
345BETT °
- BESBERARAT —B-—FFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Cost of Services

Our cost of services primarily consist of (i) labour costs which arise mainly
from the security, cleaning and gardening services; (ii) subcontracting
costs; (iii) utility expenses; (iv) office expenses; and (v) maintenance
costs.

Our cost of services increased by approximately 11.9% from
approximately RMB247.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB276.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. This increase was primarily attributable to (i) the continuous
increase in number of our projects under management and total revenue-
bearing GFA; (ii) the amortisation of the intangible assets resulted from
the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao; and (iii) the increase in resource
investment include setting up a team to develop the business of value-
added services.

To maximise our cost and operational efficiency, we outsourced our
cleaning, gardening, equipment maintenance, site security services and
car park management to Independent Third Party subcontractors. We
believe that the subcontracting arrangement allows us to leverage the
resources and expertise of the subcontractors, reduce our operating
costs, and enhance our overall efficiency and profitability.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the gross profit of the Group was
approximately RMB67.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB22.6 million or approximately 25.2% as compared to approximately
RMB89.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit
margin was 19.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 26.6% for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to (i) the significant decrease of revenue from non-
residential properties which had relatively high gross profit margin and (ii)
the amortisation of the intangible assets resulted from the acquisition of
Jiangsu Wanhao being recognised as cost of services.

Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of (i) promotional
expenses; (ii) salaries and allowances for our sales personnel; and (iii)
travelling and entertainment expenses. The total selling expenses of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately
RMB1.9 million, representing an increase of approximately RMBO0.9 million
or approximately 90% as compared with approximately RMB1.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase is primarily attributed to
more resource is allocated to sales team to expand our business.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ¢
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses (Continued)

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salaries and
allowances for our administrative and management personnel in our
headquarters; (ii) travelling expenses; (iii) professional fees; (iv) lease-
related expenses and (v) bank charges.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the administrative expenses of
the Group were approximately RMB49.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB5.5 million or approximately 12.6% as compared to
approximately RMB43.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
This increase was mainly due to (i) the continuous increase in number
of our projects under management and total revenue-bearing GFA
and (ii) the increase in headcount of our headquarters to cope with our
continuous business expansion, which make the salaries and allowance
increased by approximately RMB5.4 million.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022, other income of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB1.1 million or about 26.8% as compared to that of
approximately RMB4.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly because the bank interest income decreased by
approximately RMBO0.9 million or about 37.5% in 2022.

Impairment Loss of Trade and Other Receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the impairment loss of trade and
other receivables was approximately RMB38.4 million (2021: RMB4.1
million), which mainly include the impairment loss of trade and other
receivables from Wuxi Yongging Real Estate Company Limited* (£85 5k &
EiERRZAR]) (“Wuxi Yongging”).

In prior years, the Group entered into two sole agency services
agreements with Wuxi Yongqing (the “Agency Services Agreements”),
a former fellow subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
should provide agency services to Wuxi Yongqging for the lease/right-
of-use transfer of car parking spaces and/or shops developed by Wuxi
Yongging. Pursuant to the Agency Services Agreements, the Group
has paid refundable deposits to Wuxi Yongqging that were equivalent
to the total base price of all the car parking spaces and/or shops (the
“Refundable Deposits”) to ensure its provision of agency services. Upon
expiry of the Agency Services Agreements, Wuxi Yongaging should refund
all the remaining balance of the Refundable Deposits in full to the Group.
On 28 September 2021, Wuxi Yongging ceased to be a fellow subsidiary
of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Impairment Loss of Trade and Other Receivables
(Continued)

Upon expiry of the Agency Services Agreements, Wuxi Yongaing has not
yet refunded the outstanding Refundable Deposits to the Group. On 6
April 2022, Wuxi Yongqing transferred the right-of-use of 232 car parking
spaces with a total value of RMB7,888,000 to the Group (the “Asset
Transfer”) in partial settlement of the outstanding Refundable Deposits.
In June 2022, Wuxi Yongqging provided an undertaking to the Group
pursuant to which Wuxi Yongging committed to refund the remaining
balance of the Refundable Deposits to the Group by 30 September
2023. In addition, Wuxi Yongqing has guaranteed to obtain the Group’s
approval before selling certain properties (the “Assets”), proceeds from
the sale of the Assets will be distributed to the Group with first priority. In
case if Wuxi Yongqing is not able to refund the Refundable Deposits by 30
September 2023, the Assets will be transferred to the Group to offset with
the Refundable Deposits. As at 31 December 2022, the (i) outstanding
Refundable Deposits amounted to approximately RMB30.6 million, and (ii)
other outstanding trade receivables owed by Wuxi Yongqing to the Group
amounted to approximately RMB6.3 million (together, the “Receivables
from Wuxi Yongqing”).

On 17 February 2023, the Company has become aware that according to
a civil ruling (REH T &) issued by Xinwu District People’s Court, Wuxi
City, Jiangsu Province (T & & EHm T = [@E A REFT) (the “Court”), an
application for the bankruptcy and liquidation of Wuxi Yongqing by its
own creditor has been accepted by the Court (the “Bankruptcy”). Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 February 2023 for
further details.

In view of the Bankruptcy, the Board engaged CHFT Advisory and
Appraisal Ltd, an independent valuer, to perform an impairment
assessment on the Receivables from Wuxi Yongqing. According to the
results of such impairment assessment, the Company has recorded an
impairment loss of approximately RMB36.6 million, representing 100% of
the Receivables from Wuxi Yongging.

Such impairment assessment was performed with reference to expected
credit loss model as required by HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments, and
under the key input that probability of default of Wuxi Yongging is 100%,
which is on the basis that the Bankruptcy took place.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Income Tax (Credit)/Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the income tax credit of the
Group was approximately RMB4.1 million (2021: income tax expense
of approximately RMB13.0 million). The income tax credit for the year
was mainly due to the deferred tax arising from the impairment losses
recognised during the year.

(Loss)/profit for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss and comprehensive loss
of the Group was approximately RMB51.9 million (2021: total profit and
comprehensive income amounted to approximately RMB31.2 million). The
loss for the year was mainly due to the impairment loss of trade and other
receivables and impairment loss of amounts due from related parties of
approximately RMB77 million in total, which were only confirmed on the
date of this report.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB416.3 million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
RMB469.6 million), and the total liabilities were approximately RMB203.5
million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB205.0 million). As at
31 December 2022, the current ratio was 1.6 (as at 31 December 2021:
1.9).

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group had no
outstanding bank borrowings and undrawn banking facilities.

The Board will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong liquidity
position to ensure that the Group is able to take full advantage of future
growth opportunities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Our property, plant and equipment included (i) our building for our
staff quarters; and (ii) our furniture, fixtures and equipment in our office
premises and management offices and sites. Our property, plant and
equipment was approximately RMB41.7 million as at 31 December
2022, representing an increase of approximately RMB3.7 million or
approximately 9.7% as compared with that of approximately RMB38.0
million as at 31 December 2021. It was primarily attributable to the new
office with relevant decoration and furniture acquired in the year with a
cost of approximately RMB6.9 million, which was partially offset by the
depreciation charged for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets of approximately RMB15.8 million as at 31
December 2022 representing a decrease of approximately RMB3.1
million or approximately 16.4% as compared with that of approximately
RMB18.9 million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease is mainly due to
the amortisation charge of intangible assets during the year.

Right-of-use Assets

Our right-of-use assets represented our right to use our leased assets
(i.e. office premises and staff quarters) with lease terms of over one year,
which was initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses under HKFRS 16.

Our right-of-use assets decreased by approximately RMBO0.3 million or
about 25.0% from approximately RMB1.2 million as at 31 December 2021
to approximately RMBO0.9 million as at 31 December 2022.

Goodwill

Our goodwill was approximately RMB29.7 million as at 31 December
2022, representing an increase of approximately RMBO0.4 million or
approximately 1.4% as compared with that of approximately RMB29.3
million as at 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily attributable
to the goodwill arising from the acquisition of a new subsidiary.

Trade and Other Receivables

Our trade and other receivables decreased by approximately RMB22.4
million or about 20.6% from approximately RMB108.8 million as at 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB86.4 million as at 31 December
2022. Our trade receivables increased by approximately RMB20.7 million
or about 43.1% from approximately RMB48.0 million as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB68.7 million as at 31 December 2022 mainly
due to the continuous growth in our business. Approximately RMB35.7
million of our trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 had been
recovered as at the date of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

Amounts due from Related Parties and Fellow
Subsidiaries

Trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Our trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries mainly represented
the outstanding balances to be received from the Parent Group mainly
in respect of the provisions of our property management services and
property developer related services.

Our trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries decreased by
approximately RMB23.3 million or about 22.3% from approximately
RMB104.7 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB81.4
million as at 31 December 2022, mainly due to the impairment loss made
during the year.

Non-trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Our non-trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of
approximately RMB1.6 million and RMB1.1 million as at 31 December
2021 and 2022 respectively. The amount mainly represented the deposit
paid to the fellow subsidiary to secure the sole agent status of the sale of
car park spaces. Pursuant to the relevant agreement, the amount shall
be refunded upon completion of the sale. The balances were unsecured
interest free and repayable on demand.

The Directors confirmed that, other than the above-mentioned security
deposit arising from the acquisition of business, we do not have any
non-trading related balances with related parties (including our fellow
subsidiaries) after the Listing.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2022, the trade and other payables were
approximately RMB126.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB9.7 million or about 8.3% as compared to that of
approximately RMB116.7 million as at 31 December 2021. In which our
account payables were approximately RMB43.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB6.9 million or about 18.6% as compared
to that of approximately RMB37.0 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly
due to (i) the continuous growth in our business; and (ii) the settlement
progress between the Group and suppliers was slower than before mainly
due to the impact of the epidemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities primarily represented the payments in advance
from our customers for the provision of our property management
services because pursuant to the property management service
agreements, we usually charge a fixed amount of fees by issuing demand
notes to property owners and residents, which are generally required
to be paid in advance on an annual basis for residential properties and
a monthly or quarterly basis for non-residential properties. Our contract
liabilities decreased by approximately RMB12.1 million or about 14.9%
to approximately RMB69.1 million as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31
December 2021: approximately RMB81.2 million), which was mainly
due to the decrease of non-residential properties under management in
the year and the payment in advance from our non-residential property
customers would be higher than that from our residential property
customers.

Asset Pledged

As at 31 December 2022, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED ()

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) B R AR R (4E)
Proceeds from the Listing RS EIE
The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on BROR—_ZEZZTF=A+=H% swx?ﬁ‘IT&
13 March 2020 and 100,000,000 new Shares were issued. The over- il ]I§§ﬁ100 000,000/ 5T 1n - R=Z
allotment option was partially exercised and 5,310,000 new Shares were —ZEFMA=H&M Tﬂfi%ﬁ@ﬂﬂxﬁéiﬁéﬂ
issued on 3 April 2020. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant 5,310,000/% % % © & NBR B85 E A AR
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately % & - ETATERIBFEA /12948 8B T
HK$129.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB116.2 million). The net (HERHOARE1162BE L) - BHENER
proceeds from the Listing were higher than that stated in the Prospectus, FTELBREEMAZNERBEN R
due to a higher final issue price than the median of the range of offer HRE - MEREBALLTERLD - EWAER
prices stated in the Prospectus and lower-than-expected underwriting P BRERMM AL - MABAER
fees. Such proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that in TG AR B ERZ T E — e 5 N ER
the Prospectus which is detailed as follows: SRR
Disclosure in the Prospectus
RERERRNEE
Proceeds Proceeds
Approximate planned to planned to
net proceeds Approximate be utilised be utilised
Intended usage utilised percentage in 2020 in 2021
FTER STER
Az ZEBCIER —B=-F
BHFE B4 Az Az
RERZ NIEFHE BAL FERE Frig 8
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET GEET AE#T
Expansion of geographic presence  EA R IR EIA) IR R E
and scale of operations in the RISEHE
PRC 64.4 65.0% 61.3 3.1
Development and enhancement  FI% RIEA RPN BN 25
of our information system and R alE
technological initiatives 12.9 13.0% 12.9 -
Expansion of our value-added EmE AN ERS
services 9.9 10.0% 4.7 52
Staff development BT%#R 2.0 2.0% 2.0 -
General working capital —REEES 9.8 10.0% - -
Total T 99.0 100.0% 80.9 83
b BEEXEERERAT —ZT-_FFH 31
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Proceeds from the Listing (Continued)
Due to the abovementioned reasons, the net proceeds from the Listing

increased to HK$129.4 million and therefore our expected usage
increased proportionately as follows:

BRI (4K
ETATERIE ()
M L RE - LA REFREME

12048 8EATT - BRIt TE A ER LD
BN

As at 31 December 2022
BE-Z-"F+-A=1-H

Proceeds
Actual planned
amountof  Approximate Proceeds Proceeds not  to be utilised
Intended usage net proceeds percentage utilised yet utilised in 2023
R
-1 —BIZF
FremE ) EBA FBA BAZ
RERz ek BAK FrERA FrERE s
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET GEET BEET
Expansion of geographic presence  RABMAFEIR02HRE
and scale of operations the PRC RESEHE 84.1 65.0% 470 37.1 37.1
Development and enhancement of
our information system and RERRARMNOENZR
technological initiatives REMEE 169 13.0% 23 14.6 146
Expansion of our value-added services 12 iN%: MRS ERH 129 10.0% 34 95 95
Staff development IR 26 2.0% 1.0 16 1.6
General working capital —KEEES 12.9 10.0% 57 7.2 7.2
Total st 129.4 100.0% 59.4 70.0 70.0

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has utilized part of such
proceeds according to the use as set out in the Prospectus.
Approximately RMB47.0 million, representing approximately 36.3% of the
actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of geographic
presence and scale of operations the PRC, including acquiring Jiangsu
Wanhao; approximately RMB2.3 million, representing approximately 1.8%
of the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for development and
enhancement of our information system and technological initiatives,
which include building up a resident communication database;
approximately RMB3.4 million, representing approximately 2.6% of
the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of our
value-added service, include setting up a business development team;
approximately RMB1.0 million, representing approximately 1.0% of the
actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for staff development, include
providing training to sales team; and approximately RMB5.7 million,
representing approximately 4.4% of the actual amount of net proceeds,
was utilized for the general working capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Proceeds from the Listing (Continued)

Due to the downtrend of real estate industry, the supply of new property
in the market decrease, the uncertainty of acquisition pricing raised,
we adopt a more cautious attitude towards the evaluation of acquisition
objectives. Therefore, our progress in utilizing the proceeds from the
Listing was delayed comparing with the plan. The expected timeline for
utilising the unutilised proceeds will be one year, which is based on our
best estimation and will be subject to change in market conditions. The
unutilized proceeds as at 31 December 2022 were deposited in the bank
accounts.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group did not have any significant acquisition and disposals.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
investments.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM will be held on 31 May 2023 and the notice of the 2022
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner
as required by the Listing Rules in due course.

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was recommended by the Board for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 December 2022, we entered into a new master services agreement
(the “New Master Services Agreement”) with Beijing Herun and
Hongkun Weiye, in relation to our continuing provision of property
management, property developer related and value-added services to
Parent Group (the “Parent Group Services”) with term from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025. The annual caps under the New Master
Services Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December
20283, 2024 and 2025 are RMB45.0 million, RMB45.0 million and RMB45.0
million, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED T ()

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired
several properties from its related parties, which were held by Beijing
Hongkun Weiye Real Estate Development Co. Ltd* (1t 5B IH(E 25 i &
f 3 B R A F)), at a consideration of approximately RMB2,515,000. The
amount of such consideration payable was offset against the amounts
due from the related parties as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements as disclosed in this report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant events of the
Group after 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 773 employees. Staff
costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB143.9 million.

The Company’s policy for determining the remuneration payable to
Directors is based on the skills, knowledge, involvement and performance
of individual Directors, with reference to the Company’s profitability, the
level of remuneration in the industry and prevailing market conditions.
To ensure that the remuneration committee of the Company can better
advise on the Group’s future remuneration policies and related strategies,
the remuneration committee of the Company is informed of the Group’s
existing remuneration policies and succession plans (e.g. guidelines for
determining staff remuneration packages and relevant market trends and
information).

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group
contributes to the PRC social security fund (including pension insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
work injury insurance) and housing provident fund for its PRC employees.
The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC participate in a number of
government-sponsored defined contribution retirement schemes under
which employees are entitled to a monthly pension calculated according
to certain formulas. The relevant government agencies assume the
responsibility of pension payments to these retired employees. The
Group makes monthly contributions to these pension schemes. Under
these schemes, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
other than the contributions made. Contributions to these schemes
are expensed as incurred and contributions made to these defined
contribution pension schemes on behalf of an employee cannot be used
to reduce the Group’s future obligations under these defined contribution
pension schemes even if the employee leaves the Group.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ¢
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wu Guoging (5 B %)

Ms. Wu Guoging (R Bl i), aged 48, is our executive Director and the
Chairman of our Board. She joined our Group on 7 January 2014 as a
general manager of Beijing Hongkun, where she was responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and day-to-day business
operations. She was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of Beijing Hongkun on 18 February 2019. Ms. Wu Guoging was appointed
as our Director on 26 March 2019. She was redesignated as our
executive Director on 24 July 2019. Apart from being the chairman of the
board of directors of Beijing Hongkun, Ms. Wu Guoging is also its legal
representative and general manager. She is also the general manager of
Beijing Hongkun Property Management. Ms. Wu Guoging is responsible
for the overall management and business operations of our Group,
including formulating strategies and operational plans, supervising the
working progress of various departments, and making daily business
decisions for our Group.

Ms. Wu Guoging has more than 19 years of experience in the property
management services industry in the PRC. Prior to joining our Group,
she worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service Company Limited*
(At mREBRWERS AR A F]), a company principally engaging in providing
property management, property agency, property pre-delivery and sales
assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage services, from March 2002
to January 2014 with her last position as director (#28%), where her major job
duties included strategic execution, overseeing property management projects
and management of human resources. Before that, Ms. Wu Guoging had had
work experience in the hotel management industry.

Ms. Wu Guoging became the vice president of Hebei Property
Management Institute (Al db & ¥ ¥ E IR 1T % € ) in January 2018, the
first member of Law and Policy Working Committee of China Property
Management Institute (FEI# ¥ ERIHEARBEIEEZE®) in 2019,
CIH CM Chartered Member of CIH Chartered Institute of Housing ( %
BHERELIEES) in 2020 and the president of Beijing Xihongmen Town
Property Service Institute (b R PEAT FIEE1) 5 AR #5864 B2) in 2020.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE(R)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

She was awarded “China’s Property Management Innovative Person
in 2017* (2017 B E R8I 5 7 A¥)” in 2017 by China Property
Management Magazine* (9 EI#) % B I8 )FEs54t ), "China’s Outstanding
Property Manager in 2018* (2018 H EI{EF £ 412 A)” in 2018 by EH
Consulting (18 3 % & ), "China’s Innovative and Entrepreneurial Leader
In 2019* (2019 # [ &Il 557 &l 3 4B %0 A #)” in 2019 by Xiou Net* (% EX
49) » “Industry Influential People In 2019* (2019 FETEBEEAY) in
2019 by The China Finance Summit ( 77 B Bf 48 ¥ € ), "Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Leader of the Year 2019”* (20194 [ AP Bl &Il 7 &l 3£ 48 #h
A1) in 2019 by the 7th China Innovation and Entrepreneurship Leaders
Summit* (B-tfE+BIaIFTAIZEHIES) and "2020 Top 30 CEOs™ (2020
[ CEO 30 58) in 2020 by Leju* (Z4/E B £%).

Ms. Wu Guoging graduated from Hainan University (8FA22) in Hainan
Province, the PRC in December 1995 with her profession in international
trade. She was qualified as a certified property manager (FEH4 % & 2 Af)
by the MOHURD in August 2013.

Mr. Zhao Weihao (H#1E%)

Mr. Zhao Weihao (&%) (formerly known as Zhao Liang (#2%)), aged
29, is our executive Director. He joined our Group as a director of Beijing
Hongkun on 6 December 2017, where he is responsible for the overall
management and day-to-day business operations. He was appointed
as our Director on 26 March 2019 and redesignated as our executive
Director on 24 July 2019. Mr. Zhao Weihao is responsible for the overall
development and major business decisions making of our Group.

Mr. Zhao is currently an director of Shenzhen Municipal Coast Xingtai
Real Estate Company Limited* (&II[TT/8 =R E X BR A 7]), a company
located in PRC with principal business of real estate development,
provision of real estate brokerage services, and property leasing. During
the period from August 2019 to August 2022, Mr. Zhao was an director
of Beijing Hongkun Weiye Real Estate Development Co. Ltd, a company
located in PRC with principal business of real estate development.

Mr. Zhao Weihao graduated from Boston University in Massachusetts, the

United States in September 2016 with a bachelor’s degree in economics
and computer science.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ‘\
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Li Yin Ping (Z=#5¥)

Ms. Li Yin Ping ( Z= # 5 ) (also known as Florence Li), aged 46, is our
executive Director. She was appointed as our Director on 26 March 2019
and was redesignated as our executive Director on 24 July 2019. She
was appointed as a director of Beijing Hongkun on 18 February 2019.

Following her appointment as a director of Beijing Hongkun, she has
been actively participating in overseeing our property management
services and business development, including reviewing the workflow,
procedures and delivery of our property management services, and she
provides strategic advice. As an executive Director, Ms. Li Yin Ping also
participates in the formulation of business strategy and major decisions
of our Group as well as in the deliberation and approval of our Group’s
administrative expenses, monthly accounts and budgets, and in the
recruitment of senior management.

As at the annual report date, Ms. Li Yin Ping also served as a director in
various private companies in Hong Kong and overseas which engage in
different nature of business as listed below. With her experience in finance
and capital investment, particularly investment in listed companies, Ms.
Li Yin Ping is also involved in strategic planning of our Group’s fund
raising and capital investment activities, and provides guidance and
supervision on financial management and corporate governance of our
Group as well as in overall strategic planning and business development
of new business opportunities. In particular, for the implementation of our
Group'’s strategic plan to expand our market reach in the PRC to cover at
least five additional cities by 2021 through acquisitions of suitable local
property management companies, Ms. Li Yin Ping will also be involved
in assessing such opportunities once they arise and in ensuring potential
acquisition targets fit into our Group’s acquisition criteria as determined
by the Board.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Li Yin Ping has experiences in finance and capital investments.
She also has previous work experiences in the financial advisory and
insurance industries. Among others, she is holding the following positions
in Hong Kong and overseas:

Place of

Company name incorporation Period of time

NEER SRR S 3t B A

Top Sing International Company Hong Kong October 2013 to present
Limited

IEERER QT BB —E-ZFTHES

Mega Marketing & Media Hong Kong May 2015 to present
Company Limited

EEMSRIABEL BB —hFRAZES

Vibes Management Company Hong Kong May 2016 to present
Limited

EHBERBRAF 5 —E-RFELRES

Pioneer Unicorn Limited BVI June 2016 to present

Pioneer Unicorn Limited REBRZES ZE-RFRAES

Winz Strategy Company Limited Hong Kong February 2017 to present

SRR ER LT BB “T—+tF-RES

Winz Strategy BVI April 2017 to present

el KBRS —tFmAES

Ms. Li Yin Ping is currently a member of the Federation of HK Guangxi
Community Organisations, as well as an executive committee member (&
154832) of 2019 of The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon.

Ms. Li Yin Ping obtained a master’s degree in business administration

(MBA) from European University Business School in January 2017 through
distance learning.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ¢
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Zhang Chunying (3R & %)

Ms. Zhang Chunying (5& & %), aged 41, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 7 July 2021, and serve as the chief financial officer
of the Company. Ms. Zhang has joined the Company since 31 July 2018
and is responsible for financial management work of the Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 11 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zhang worked in Beijing
Vanke Property Service Company Limited (1t R E R % RF AR Q7))
from October 2007 to July 2018, a company which is mainly engaged
in providing property management, property agency, property pre-
delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services before handover of properties and sales. Her last position was
the head of financial management department of Tianjin Vanke Property
Service Company Limited (K& & B2 8k 7% B R A 7)), responsible for
comprehensive financial tasks, including budgeting, auditing, capital and
taxation and others.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Agricultural University of Hebei with bachelor’s
degree of Economic and Management Profession in 2008, and graduated
from North Borneo University College in Malaysia, with a master’s
degree in Management in February 2022. She obtained an accounting
qualification certificate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li Yifan (Z— /)

Mr. Li Yifan (Z2— ), aged 34, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director on 7 July 2021. Mr. Li has joined Hongkun Group Company
Limited (753 %£ B B R A 7)) since May 2018. He is the Board secretary
of Hongkun Group Company Limited and the person in charge of its
strategic and capital operation centre. Prior to joining Hongkun Group
Company Limited, Mr. Li served as a manager of the directors office at
State Development & Investment Corporation (Bl % 5 2% & A &) from
May 2014 to March 2017. From March 2017 to April 2018, Mr. Li was the
senior manager and secretary to the board chairman of Zhengrong Group
Ltd. (IEEREB AR A A]).

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor s degree in Law from Peking University
in July 2012 and a master’s degree in International Studies from The
University of Sydney in July 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE(R)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (3R 1)

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (3R{E%#), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment and advice to our Board.
He is the chairman of Nomination Committee, and a member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung has over 12 years of experience in auditing and
accounting industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung Wai Hung
worked at Aoba CPA Limited from July 2004 to April 2014 with his last
position as audit manager, where he assisted in the audit of various
medium-sized and listed companies. Mr. Cheung has been appointed,
since April 2014, as the chief financial officer serving Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1305), where he is responsible for the
financial management. He has become a member of the risk management
committee of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited since August 2015 and
been appointed as the company secretary serving Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited since November 2015. Since August 2018, Mr. Cheung
Wai Hung has been appointed as the independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8299).

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong in November 2003 with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy. He is currently a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Chartered tax adviser with a membership in
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (& E %)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Bf & i), aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment and advice to our Board.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee, and a member of Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat is the founding shareholder and sole director of
C T Tax Consultants Limited since August 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Chan
Cheong Tat had worked in the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong
for over 32 years. He joined the HKSAR Government as assistant assessor
in November 1972 and was promoted to assistant commissioner of the
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong in September 2003. He retired
from the HKSAR Government in April 2005.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat obtained a master’s degree in financial
management from Central Queensland University of Australia in October
1995 through distance learning. He was admitted as an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (now known as The
Chartered Governance Institute) in the United Kingdom in March 1974,
a fellow of the Association of Certified Accountants (now known as the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in November 1983, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 1986, a fellow of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants (now known as
CPA Australia) in June 1990, and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries (now known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) in August 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSAEEE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS By k#TES(H)
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat has been or was appointed as an independent non- PREFELAECDKKBEZERTIEELT
executive director of the following listed companies in Hong Kong: NAETIEMITES
Company name Place of listing and stock code Period of time
ARBRE L B R BRAD K 5% RFHA
Medicskin Holdings Limited GEM of the Stock Exchange December 2014 to present
(stock code: 8307)
HmHT B R B 22 PrGEM (I& 5 1K 5%:8307 ) —E-WFE+AES
Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited GEM of the Stock Exchange June 2018 to present
(stock code: 8512)
EEREERER AT B 22 PRGEM (IR 19 155 8512) —ZE-NFRAES
Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings GEM of the Stock Exchange September 2018 to present
Company Limited (stock code: 8537)
BEIRE S EIER AR A B 22 PRGEM (AR 19 155 : 8537) —E-NFAAES
Accel Group Holdings Limited Main Board of the Stock Exchange September 2019 to present
(stock code: 1283)
SR EEERERA RS2 P AR (MR 5% 1283) —ZE-NFAAES
Wasion Group Holdings Limited Main Board of the Stock Exchange May 2014 to May 2015; June 2020 to
(stock code: 3393) present
BB SEEERARA Bt 22 P AR (P& 5% 3393) ZE-NFRAET—RFRA:

e A E e
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Ms. Chen Weijie (BR#E5E)

Ms. Chen Weijie (R #5%), aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. She is responsible for
providing independent judgment and advice to our Board. She is the
chairman of Remuneration Committee, and a member of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Ms. Chen Weijie has over 11 years of experience in executive
management, investment and corporate finance. Since July 2020, Ms.
Chen Weijie has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and
responsible officer in Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities of Vision Finance (Securities) Limited, a company principally
engaging in provision of financial services, where she is responsible for
the overall business development and provision of financial advice to
listed companies. Before joining Vision Finance (Securities) Limited, from
March 2018 to December 2019, Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed
as the executive director and responsible officer in Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities of ZhongHua Finance Capital
Company Limited, a company principally engaging in provision of
financial services, where she is responsible for the overall business
development and provision of financial advice to listed companies. Ms.
Chen Weijie had also worked as senior management for several financial
and securities companies including Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1355) from November
2016 to February 2018, Vision Finance (Securities) Limited from May
2013 to October 2016, China Private Equity Investment Holdings Limited
between December 2010 and April 2013, China Fortune Group Limited
(currently known as China Fortune Financial Group Limited), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
290) from August 2009 to November 2010, and China Aircraft Leasing
Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1848) from August 2008 to August
2009. Since 4 October 2021, Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed as the
executive director of Finet Group Limited, the shares of which are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8317). Since 18 June 2021,
Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of Chong Kin Group Holding Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1609).
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China Private Equity Investment Holdings
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Ms. Chen Weijie also has some relevant experience in the legal sector.
Prior to joining our Group, she worked as an intern at the Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangzhou, the PRC, from December 2003 to July
2004, and as a paralegal in the corporate finance department at Norton
Rose Hong Kong (currently known as Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong)
from July 2006 to June 2008. She was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in
2009.

Ms. Chen Weijie graduated from Guangdong University of Finance &
Economics (previously known as Guangdong Business School* (& 3 i
E0t)) in Guangdong, the PRC in June 2004 with a bachelor’s degree in
law. She also obtained a master of laws in international business law from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2005. She has
been holding a Type 6 licence (advising on corporate finance) granted by
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since July 2013.

Mr. Leung Ka Wo (£ X))

Mr. Leung Ka Wo (X #), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 7 July 2021. He is responsible for providing
independent judgment and advice to our Board. He is a member of
the Audit committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director, the
chairman and member of audit committee and a member of each of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of Tongguan
Gold Group Limited (formerly known as China Mining Resources Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 0340), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung is currently a director and chief financial
officer of China TX IOT Group (Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
Seattle University. Mr. Leung is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, certified public
accountant of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
certified public accountant in the State of California in the United States of
America.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Shuai Chuanyong (BN & 5)

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong ( B & & ), aged 54, was appointed as deputy
general manager of Beijing Hongkun on 17 October 2017. He is
responsible for the project management of our managed properties
in Tianjin, Hebei Province and Hainan Province in the PRC, as well as
business development, quality control oversight and human resources
management of Beijing Hongkun. He is also the executive director
of Tianjin Hongsheng and Xinaghe HongKun Property Management
Company Limited (B /AR EERHRRAA).

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong has over 8 years of experience in the property
management industry in the PRC. Prior to joining our Group, he worked
at Beijing Hengfu Property Service Company Limited Tianjin Branch* (1t
FEEVERBER AT XRED A, a company principally engaging in
provision of property management and real estate brokerage services,
from 1 September 2011 to 15 October 2017 with his last position as vice
general manager, where he was responsible for general management.
Before that, Mr. Shuai Chuanyong had had work experiences in the
property management, manufacturing and decoration industries.

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong graduated from Jiangxi Institute of Economic
Administrators* (JT 78487 & 12 #3020t ) in Jiangxi Province, the PRC in
July 1993 with his profession in business management.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE(A)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Cao Lixin (&3 %)

Ms. Cao Lixin (& 32 %), aged 37, was appointed as assistant general manager
of Beijing Hongkun on 7 January 2018. She joined our Group on 4
September 2015 as the director (#285) of Beijing Hongkun’s management
projects in Beijing. She is responsible for project management of our
managed properties in Beijing and Shanghai, the PRC, and customer
services oversight.

Prior to joining our Group, she worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service
Company Limited* (3t R&EH ZE AR % AR 2 7), a company principally
engaging in providing property management, property agency, property
pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services, from March 2004 to September 2015 with her last position as
department manager, where she was responsible for project planning
and management.

Ms. Cao Lixin graduated from The Open University of China (AR E
& E 5 K 2) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2005 with her profession in
horticulture through distance learning. She also graduated from China
Agricultural University (B2 % K 2) in Beijing, the PRC in July 2007 with
her profession in landscape architecture through an online course.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Kong Linggong (L% h)

Mr. Kong Linggong (FL.< ), aged 37, was appointed as vice marketing
director (#8%) of Beijing Hongkun on 13 November 2017. He joined our
Group on 13 February 2014 as an assistant manager of the quality control
department of Beijing Hongkun. He was also appointed as the operations
director (# &%) of Beijing Hongkun on 25 February 2019. He is responsible
for overseeing business development, formulating marketing strategies,
and merger and acquisition of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, he worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service
Company Limited* (3t R&EH ZE IR % AR 2 7), a company principally
engaging in providing property management, property agency, property
pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services, from September 2008 to February 2014 with his last position as
project business assistant, where he was responsible for management of
quality control and customer services.

Mr. Kong Linggong graduated from Beijing Normal University (1t &% Bl €5
A E) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2007 with his profession in applied
electronic technology through an evening course. He also graduated
from Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture (3t ;2 & &
AE) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2015 with his profession in building
environment and equipment engineering.

EENREREEE(E)

BREEE(E)
ALEE

ALUMELE  7HR R-E—LF+—H
T=ZREZTRIEFBHNTISMREE
B -FR-ZZE-—MF_A+T=BMNMALSE
P EEAE OB E BRI E A BIR IR -
BIFR—ZE-—NAF A - +HRAEZERI
OB S ERE RAREBEAKENE
TEER - HIE = SR OB o

RIMAREEZAT - RER_FTN\FNA
E_T-NE_AGRLERERMERB AR
REIIE ZAPEZERERHEWEEE
MERIE - EWE A M S BRI
By~ AR EHER LR - WMRENB
REBEBYE  AREHERNNREPRY
MEIE o

LY ERER-TELF - AEENHEILL
RAARMBAL - BEBRERIZTEER
BFRE - BRITRZE—RF— AEERH
BRI RS RE - WL BEERIRR
RELIE

- HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH

- D

(XL

47



48

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE(R)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Bi Sheng (£)

Mr. Bi Sheng (£), aged 51, was appointed as the senior manager
of the engineering management department of Beijing Hongkun on 13
February 2018. He joined our Group as the manager of the engineering
management department of Beijing Hongkun on 27 March 2015. He is
responsible for engineering management and quality control of repairs
and maintenance of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, he worked at Beijing Vanke Property
Management Company Limited* (1t RE R RSB R A R]), a company
principally engaging in providing property management, property agency,
property pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate
brokerage services, from March 2003 to August 2012 with his last position
as assistant manager where he was responsible for management of the
engineering, environment and safety departments. He was then employed
as deputy general manager of the management platform in First Taiping
Rongke Property Management (Beijing) Company Limited Chaoyang
Branch* (5 —AF@EmEEE (UL R)BRAREHEH A E]), a company
principally engaging in provision of property management services, from
August 2012 to March 2015, where he was responsible for management
of engineering and repairs.

Mr. Bi Sheng graduated from China University of Geosciences (7 Ed#h & X
£) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2013 with his profession in civil engineering
through an online course. He was qualified as a certified property manager
(5F it % & 2 A ) by the Beijing Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau* (At R A N E R ZIREEB) of the PRC in September
2014. He finished the property management examination approved by the
Beijing Municipal Commission of Housing and Urban-Rural Development*
(At ERTEEFHEERZEZ E2) in June 2011. He also finished a professional
vocation training course in property inspection and facilities and equipment
management at China Property Management Institute* (F B2 EEHE) in
August 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Wang Xiaorong (£ %)

Mr. Wang Xiaorong (£ £%¥), aged 41, was appointed as director (#825)
of Beijing Hongkun’s properties in Tianjin on 12 June 2018. He joined our
Group as a manager responsible for project management on 1 August
2016. He is responsible for the general project management of our
managed properties in Tianjin and Xianghe, Hebei Province, the PRC.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang Xiaorong worked at Beijing Vanke
Property Management Company Limited* (1t =& R ¥ IRE B R A 7)),
a company principally engaging in providing property management,
property agency, property pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting
and real estate brokerage services, from March 2005 to August 2016
with his last position as business support system manager, where he was
responsible for maintenance of the business support system and property
environment management.

Mr. Wang Xiaorong graduated from China Agricultural University
(FFEEZZKE) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2016 with his profession in
horticulture through an online course. He passed the property
management examination approved by Beijing Municipal Commission of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development* (it R E M ERZ B E)
of the PRC in April 2015.

*  For identification purposes only

EENREREEE(E)

BREEE(E)
EL 3T T3

EEREE MR RZE-\ERATZ
HEZERIEFEHNRRZNDROBE -
BR—ZT—RNFNA—BIMAKREER -
K12 ARERERE - RAFRMNTEX
RIOUIEEENNEEMEN—RIAEERE -

RIMAAEBZR - FZERELEGR-_TF
AF=ZAZE_F-R"FNAARERENYE
RIFAR DB LE  Z AR EZRERHEY
XEIE  WEMRE  EVEX(TA R EER
BRI E) - A LFEHELLRYT - &
BHBBARBIERARLE  BEMEX
BXEEGRMDERRER

FEREENR T -RF-AEENTEIL
REHBEEEARSR  WEBERRETEE
o R T -RFOABBTEILRTE
FEMpERZ B et ENMEEIEEHA -

* EEEE
- HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH
- )

(XL

49



Project Overview

HEME

HONGKUN PROPERTY PROJECT INFORMATION JS##¥£EHE R

1. BEIJING WOOD AND LIFE VILLA
b e HhFEEE

As the high-end residential representative of Hongkun Group, Beijing Wood and Life Villa provides scarce, high
comfort and healthy high-tech luxury homes in the city’s core for customers pursuing high quality of life. Based on the
Elysée Palace in France, the Pure Villa Community comprising of 276 town houses and stacked villas, with a plot ratio
of 1.02, is located on Xinwang South Street in Daxing, Beijing.

IR MABEERBHEEBHHA TR EEAER - REREREEENES  BHEMZOBR - SEEE - RED
BRRRE - WEABEBEEREAR @ 276 EM MBI R EEKRMAREHE - REXR1.02 - BERRIERH A
TREER A -

50 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report 7/

A0



Project Overview (Continued)
HEBE(E)

HONGKUN FLOWER AND LIFE VILLA
HRiHeTERE

Located in the hinterland of Beijing CBD, Hongkun Flower and Life Villa is the only low-density villa in the CBD,
with shopping, entertainment, star hotel, leisure and fitness, education and medical care, and service facilities all
around the project. The south side of the project is the southeast irrigation canal, and the north side is the 8,000
square meters urban garden (pending building) planned by the government, with a total construction land area of
27,000 square meters and a GFA of approximately 65,000 square meters, a total of 9 buildings comprising of 270
households, with a plot ratio of only 1.6, a greening coverage rate of 60%, and a utilization rate of 86%-89%.

TEiHe BB M N IL RCBDEH! - 2CBDW —(KREHEPIEER - BH FEEY  RE  EQBE - KBRS  HEE
B REEES—EE2 - BEMAARMEEESR - LAIRKATEEIFS,000F 5 KM MIEE @ BEZAMIH2.78
FRHK - SEEMENCSET K - HORE - 2705 - RIEREE1.6 - SLBEEEXE60% @ £ ESES6%-89% °
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Project Overview (Continued)
HEMZEGE)

3. HAINAN HONGKUN LANDSCAPE VILLA
AR e LGSR

As the first resort community in Hainan with Zen culture as the theme, Hainan Hongkun Landscape Villa brings a
unique holiday life to the people in pursuit of spiritual relaxation, leisure and health. By virtue of the natural landscape
of mountains and lush greenery, through incorporating the view of the mountain into the park, Hainan Hongkun
Landscape Villa is the new trend of Sanya, a “second home”.

BEEEe IBEELSSEE - FUBEXLATENERMR - RERLENR - KEBENAFHERBRNERE
A EKEILERRNBARE  MUAER - B=5[F_FEMIFRR -
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Project Overview (Continued)
HEBE(E)

HONGKUN IDEAL CITY
R 3 o 12 15 Y

Located in the heart of the new city of Daxing District, Beijing,
Hongkun Ideal City project is a model of Hongkun Real Estate’s
high-level low-density product series. With an area of 130,800
square meters and a 100% occupancy rate, the development, which
was ready for check-in November 2010, not only enjoys 35,000
square meters of quality education resources, but is also located by
IKEA’s Asian flagship store; has an Art Deco’s classic architectural
style and is inspired by the French Art Deco architecture, and
integrates the new decoration style, urban impression concept
and free fashion culture into one through the refined and perfect
treatment of facades and decorative components, giving the urban
revival temperament; has the units ranging from 90 to 180 square
meters, showing people a rich and varied lifestyle.
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Project Overview (Continued)

HEME(E)

5. HONGKUN PLAZA SHOPPING CENTRE
8 RIS R P s

As the first commercial project launched by Hongkun Real Estate
Group to serve community residents, Hongkun Plaza Shopping
Centre is a comprehensive community commercial project
integrating retail, restaurant, children, entertainment, fitness,
cinema, co-working and other business modes. The project is
dedicated to creating a creative community sharing centre in the
southwest Beijing.
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Project Overview (Continued)
HEBE(E)

6. HONGKUN VALUE TOWN INDUSTRIAL PARK
Bl ERMAEXE

Hongkun Value Town Industrial Park is a new landmark of industrial
development in the capital city that brings together modern service
industries such as finance, culture and creativity, internet and new
industries with innovation. It has 12 eco-intelligent innovations and
“three-star” green building standards, and leads the way to become
one of the few national “dual-ecology” intelligent business parks
that combines landscape and industrial ecology in Beijing.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance.

The Board believes that high standard of corporate governance is
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s corporate
governance practices. The Company has also in place a corporate
governance framework and has established a set of policies and
procedures based on the Corporate Governance Code. Such policies
and procedures provide the basis for enhancing the Board’s abilities
to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on business
conduct and affairs of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code with
the exception for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code stipulates that the roles of chairman of the board of directors and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Ms. Wu Guoging is the General Manager of Beijing Hongkun and is
involved in the day-to-day management of our business. Although she
does not hold the title of Chief Executive Officer, she can be regarded
as the de facto Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She is also the
Chairman of the Board. Ms. Wu has been responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning and day-to-day business operations
of the Group. The Board believes that at this stage of the Group’s
development, having the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person brings strong and consistent
leadership to the Company for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. Accordingly, the
Directors consider it is appropriate and reasonable to deviate from code
provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. However, it is the
Company’s long term objective to have different individuals in the two
roles when suitable candidates are identified.

The Group will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance

practices in order to ensure the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is composed of 44.4%
INEDs, representing a strong independent element. Independent views
and inputs are always available to the Board no matter through formal or
informal channels. The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and
constructive relations between INEDs and other Directors to facilitate
effective contribution of INEDs for independent views and inputs.
Independent professional advice is sought when necessary or as required
by Directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
composition and is satisfied with the independence of the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. The Company has
made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during the Reporting
Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Guoging, Ms. Li Yin Ping and
Ms. Zhang Chunying, one non-executive Director, named Mr. Li Yifan,
and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 35 to 49 of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEER®E (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with any other
Directors or chief executive.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. Notices of not less
than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying meeting papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors
or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will
be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of
meetings are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERRE (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EEE(H)

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records EEg@&#MEEHFLHRE)
(Continued)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also holds meetings hREHEZgSRIN  ETRBFHLGHEHM
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of BEETNESHER MBS IFRITE SR

other Directors during each year. & °
During the Reporting Period, 5 Board meetings were held, and 1 general WEA - KB TORESEEE WEH
meeting were convened. The attendance of each Director at these TURBRRKRE - u§$wﬁg;§m%mn
meetings is set out in the table below: TR
Board Meetings General Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended/Eligible
to Attend to attend
EHEEEEEE EHERRAE
Director o= FEHERE EHERE
Mr. Zhao Weihao HEREE 5/5 1/1
Ms. Wu Guoging REEZ L 5/5 1/1
Ms. Li Yin Ping TR LT 5/5 1/1
Ms. Zhang Chunyin RERL L 5/5 1/1
Mr. Li Yifan Z— LA 5/5 11
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLAE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung SRIBME S 5/5 1/1
Ms. Chen Weijie PRAEE 20+ 5/5 1/1
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRITE 5/5 1/1
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer TR R AT AR

The position of Chairman is held by Ms. Wu Guoging and she provides EREBGHREMLTRET - RREEEER
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership BT EBEEFTENEREERES - KAF]
of the Board. The Company does not at present have any officer with WA BAER AR EB1THRE %&Jﬂ‘gﬁﬁ o R
the title “chief executive officer”. However, being the general manager if - f’ﬁﬁibx‘?\ﬁ%ﬁm?@?&@l/ EEUNSIE S
of Beijing Hongkun and involved in the day-to-day management of MBEHEE  BERLETTERIMNBAE -
our business, Ms. Wu Guoging may be regarded as our de-facto chief $AL9%I9E RTHRBAE B ITIRAE
executive officer of the Group though she does not carry such title. She H e -FEEASEMNEEEE  BEKHRE %D
has been responsible for the overall management, strategic planning and HEEBEE -

day-to-day business operations of our Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEER®E (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the requirements
set out in Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of one year commencing from their respective date of appointment,

subject to renewal after the expiry of their current term.

The specific terms of service of each non-executive Director (including
independent non-executive Director) are as follows:

EEE(#®)
B IFMITES

RBEHR EFe—EFALMHEUE
3.10(1) & ~ 3.10(2) & & 3. 10A KT E B BE &
TELZZBIIENTES  MZETBIIE
PITEERLEFTEXEN=22—ULER
HPh— 2B TES A EEMEE
BRSNS S EEERABAT

ARRIBKEI BB IFATERRE LHA
AII53.131% Fﬁﬁﬁi'i?ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%é
HWEEMFEEERE - NRARRAEEL
FMITEFHRBIAL -

BEEMNRIRER
BUEATEFOENARSEANEED
gt%% F o WA R EE AR R R

BIFRTER(BRBIUIFRTES)NAR
ERIT

Name of Director Term of Service

From 7 July 2021 and subject to retirement by rotation at least once

every three years. A retiring Director shall be e||g|ble for re-election.

EEME PR 7% BABR

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Li Yifan

F—EAE = P
étﬂ%ﬂié

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

itﬂtﬁi Z2LB=FHERT R - GRENEEE

From 17 February 2020 and subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for

re-election.

REZELE

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

BERWEE -

BE-Z-ZF-_A+tRE EOE=FHERE X IHERENES

From 17 February 2020 and subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for

BE-Z-ZF-_A+tRE E2OE=FHERE K IHBRENES

From 17 February 2020 and subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for

BE-Z_ZF_A+tBE 2OEB=FHERE K IHBRENES

From 7 July 2021 and subject to retirement by rotation at least once

every three years. A retiring Director shall be ellglble for re-election.

re-election.
PR EY s
BEBWEE o
Mr. Chen Weijie
re-election.
PR s Lt :
BEEBWEE o
Mr. Leung Ka Wo
BRAEE T —
é%ﬁépo
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings. Under the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Articles of Association also
provide that any Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations. The
independent non-executive Directors will also be able to provide an
impartial, external opinion to the Board so as to ensure that the Board can
obtain independent views and opinions that it requires when exercising
its powers and making major decisions and to protect the interests of
our Shareholders. During the Reporting Period, the 4 independent non-
executive Directors attended Board meetings regularly and actively
participated in the decision-making process of the Board, and provided
independent views and opinions to the Board when it performed its
duties. In view of the above, and after review, the Board believes
that its mechanism for obtaining independent opinions has been fully
implemented and continues to be effective.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERHRE(A)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such
induction shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERRE(E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EEE(H)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of EE2kEBREMBE BENME
the Board and Management (Continued) BL(AE)

During the Reporting Period, all Directors have been given the training REREEIA - ﬁﬁﬁ%%i’jﬁ?ﬁ{’ﬁ%%%ﬂ’]ﬁ
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance BENET CEETANEEE HERMEE
and regulatory updates and relevant reading materials including J BERNERCEEBAEEN(BEERTF
compliance manual/legal and regulatory updates/seminar handouts have M EkEREEEH il ess)  HEE
been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying. LEMPFE -

The individual training record of each Director received during the FUESAREHNAEAEEE 8 a0

Reporting Period is summarized below: T

Attending relevant
training regarding
the directors’ duties
and responsibilities,
corporate governance
and regulatory
updates; reading
relevant materials
including compliance
manual/legal
and regulatory
updates/
seminar handouts
SMERESEHE

REF - bEER

ERE ARSI
FEEEM R B
BRFM CEEER
Name of Director EEp B HAgEE
Mr. Zhao Weihao HEREE v/
Ms. Wu Guoging SEMLL v
Ms. Li Yin Ping FHRF L L v
Ms. Zhang Chunyin RERLZ L v
Mr. Li Yifan F—EE v
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREERAE v
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung RIELESEE v
Ms. Chen Weijie BR#EE L+ v
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RENFEE v
i pEgEERERAT —$-—F5% 63
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEER®E (&)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to the Shareholders upon
request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai
Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo. Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, oversee our audit process and perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and
the attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table
below:

EEZ8YE
EEGCRI-EEES  HBREAE
PHEEERREEEE  UEEAAAE

BEORESTHE - ARBMAEEZEGENK

VISR E AEEHBEGE %%WEHT&
ENREREBE  BERZE®  FHZES

kiR ZREE E’JHME%@IPJ%EB{\Z!& Gk
KB 32 FAh - WA RCR BRES A (&R -

BEZLREE

BEREZBemUR B IFNITESRMAN - A
BREZESLLE(LF)  RIEFHELE  RETBL
ITRRRMEE - ERZEELFREESL
R ETARRIES A0 EFTRE R E & F
EER - St MAEMEERRENE -

ZJS“ﬂEL?J:ﬁ%E NE3 2GR BEER
TSRIRIEZZESR °§V§,\EE’J‘I§H
E\Z%%&ﬁ&ﬁbﬂzliglmﬁﬁ%#ﬁi%m
TR N AR R %%ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ*ﬁz
V&)@ﬁé%é\% MEMELE -

MNBEMA - BERZEGRTT2RE%
BREHEIFRMTRAR

Attended/Eligible to attend

Director = BHiE EBHE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Chairman) fREESE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung RIEMRE 2/2
Ms. Chen Weijie BR#E S+ 2/2
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRMEE 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)
During the meetings, the Audit Committee:

° reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 as well as the relevant financial
reports;

° reviewed the audit report prepared by the auditor relating to
accounting issues and major findings in course of audit; and

° reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
risk management and internal control systems (including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management systems and
processes and the re-appointment of the auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the
presence of the executive Directors during the Reporting Period.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chen Weijie (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Hung,
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to establish and review the policy and structure of the remuneration
for the Directors and senior management, make recommendations
on employee benefit arrangement and review and/or approve matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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TEER®E (&)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting

and the attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out
in the table below:

EEZEE(H)

sz B e (E)
EHN - FHEBEBRTTIRER &
uﬁM§E REMHEERIN TRAR

Attended/Eligible to attend

Director = BHiE EBHE
Ms. Chen Weijie (Chairman) FRuE S (E/E) 1/1
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung RIEHE - 1/1
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLE 1/1
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRMIEE 1/1
During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee considered and NEEEE - FINEZEE TR NN T3

reviewed, and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors,
assessed the performance of executive Directors, and reviewed and
approved the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.

The remuneration payable to Directors and senior management of the
Company is determined with reference to capabilities, experiences, duties
and responsibilities, and the remuneration benchmarks normally paid
by other companies in the industry for ensuring a fair and competitive
remuneration package in the market.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the senior management
by band are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements
and the details of the remuneration of senior management by
remuneration band are set out below:

EENHMEENFMIR  LRESSR
H7TEE BERTESNRARERE
ENRBER -

XN TEERERASRERANENZFHT
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EREERSREREFMRER) NFE
HNEAMBRRMTIORSRERAESH
PizgEE S D FBEWT

Number of individuals

Remuneration Band (R\/B) FENIREE (A L) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 021,000,000 2
Nomination Committee BEELE®

The Nomination Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (Chairman), Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our Board on the
appointment and removal of our Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving and maintaining diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting
and the attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in
the table below:

EERHRE(A)

EEZEE(H)
REZREe(E)

RAFHEERSERE  REZE8/EEXR
RABFEEZTLEBRRTHIINEFTE ST
EsETEMER REZEEHEVE
BemTATERRERESEZ T
SAERE  WRBEFERM -

i)

RYEMEREENERREAR 2%
BEEMEFSFLERZA  HEREF
RABBERP R RE ARARRIRE - A
AEERBUABEFRN TEREZEZTT
1t o

REZEGRA/EAFEFTEZILLEHN
HBEYE TAREBERESTSZTEBERR
EEAAEENERE -

RBEMA - REZEGRTTIRGH - &
REZBEREBOHEBRITRAR :

Attended/Eligible to attend

Director = BHE EHE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (Chairman) REWHSTE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLE 1/1
Ms. Chen Weijie BR#E S+ 11
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRMEE 1/1

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee:
° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assessed the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors;
° reviewed the Director Nomination Policy;
° reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and
° considered the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for

re-election at the annual general meeting.
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EEERHRE(A)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Board Diversity Policy

We have adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the objective and approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on our Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
our Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that our Company should
endeavour to ensure that our Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
required to support the execution of our business strategies. Pursuant
to the Board Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service. Our
Nomination Committee is delegated by our Board to be responsible for
the compliance with relevant code provisions governing board diversity
under the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination Committee
reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy at least annually to ensure its continued effective and appropriate
for the Company and in compliance with regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practices. We will disclose in our corporate
governance report about the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
on an annual basis.

Our Board comprises nine members, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors.
Our Directors have a balanced mix of experiences, including overall
management and strategic development, business and risk management,
and finance and accounting experiences. Our Board members have a
wide range of age, ranging from 29 to 73 years old. Furthermore, one-
third of our Board members are female. The Company targets to have
at least one-third of female representation on the Board, so we have
achieved our goal of gender diversity. After due consideration, our Board
believes that based on the meritocracy of our Directors, the composition
of our Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has reviewed

the following measurable objectives and the progress towards these
objectives:

TEER®E (E)

EEZE2(HE)
EE2Z LR E)

RIEHA - IRBRZECERKRUTAGE
BIZRERIE BIZMEE ¢

Measurable objectives
AFtERE

Progress

ERERE

The Board has at least one-third Director(s) of a
different gender
EEgr A= —TRERNES

Consider the appointment of new Director(s)
from a wide range of candidates (including
backgrounds, skills, experience and perspectives
that would complement the existing Board) and
prioritize enhancement of gender diversity
HEZALT(BERESR it ERRESTER
NEFEHENERZ)PEELERFTEERIAE
MEESURNZ T REP—EELEES
Review annually on the composition and structure
of the Board as well as Board diversity

tﬁ&?é%gﬁ&&
P

Establish a pipeline of potential Director

successors to achieve gender diversity

E - UREFEZ T

B — AR LAERERIZ T
BB

e EBEEESEEIA

There are no mitigating factors or circumstances which make achieving

As of 31 December 2022, the Board has three female
Directors, the objective has been achieved.
BE_Z-__F+_A=+—H EFSgHE=ZMUEF H
ZEER ©

Achieved in the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
The Company will continue to look for diverse and suitable
candidates for recommendation and appointment as
Director(s).

REE—F— *i-i—*ﬂf-i- B BEEDENX - NRFIHRH
‘'mezk - BUHEBZRERES -

Achieved in the financial year ended 31 December 2022. The
evaluation process includes an assessment of Board diversity
and objective consideration of the Board’s composition and
performance.
REE_Z__F+_A=+—HYRFEDEK - FTZBEE
BEFEZ UL - FEME RESSRAMER
Achieved in the financial year ended 31 December 2022. The
Board will seize the opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting suitable Director
candidates and making recommendations accordingly. The
Company will also continue to promote gender diversity when
recruiting mid-level and senior employees, and reserve a
group of female executives and potential Director successors
for the future.
REE_T__F+_A=+—HYRFEDEK - £EESE
MERREATHIIREERRESEN  EFSICERSRRNBE
K SRR o RN R INSEBERIET S K8 TRERM
RZTL - RAKRFEEHLESEAEREESEEEIA -

BREENEL2BET(BERREEAER)

gender diversity across the workforce (including senior management)
more challenging or less relevant. As at 31 December 2002, the Group
had 773 employees, of which 368 were female, accounting for about
47.6% of all the employees; the Group had 5 senior management
members, of which 1 was female, accounting for 20% of all the senior
management members. The details of gender diversity of all employees
of the Group are contained in the 2022 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report independently released by the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Skills, experience and professional expertise — the candidate
should possess the skills, knowledge, experience, qualification and
professional expertise which are relevant to the operation of the
Group.

° Diversity — the candidate should be considered with due regard to
the diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

° Commitment — the candidate should be able to devote sufficient
time to attend the Board meetings and participate in induction
training and other relevant activities.

° Standing - the candidate must satisfy the Board and the Stock
Exchange that he/she has the character, experience and
integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard of competence
commensurate with the relevant position as a Director.

° Independence — the candidate to be nominated as an independent
non-executive Director must satisfy the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at

general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
(including environment, social and governance risk) and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines in relation to, among others, corporate
governance, risk evaluation and management, anti-corruption, disclosure
of information, confidentiality and financial reporting in order to achieve
effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various
aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory
compliance and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied with by
each department.

EERHRE(A)

EEZEE(H)
ERERBEE

EXSRABETEREATARSTRIEIE
A2 MRFTHEREE -

RBERAN - EXRCRHAARFLEER
BENER  EERGRERENEIRT
BEEEE  ARRABRRLERTEERR
EREFR - BETRIREEERTRINEST
BRARAR R RN AREEE R TS N

B

TR B 3 2 P9 P 42

SFeRAHEHAHRRER(2ERE - e
RERRR) RNEHERIRA AR - WBRE
B ZERGNENLE - BRRREEER
M IEHERARBEEM T B RMER - MAR
RERLERNRERAKBRIELAEMIER
HHRFE

EFEerEARMEREEA R RER R
BERAESEANEREERIZEE AR
R HERREE A R LR B I K YRR AR

BERZEEHESTERAEEEERERK
ERa - BeREERREE AR R

il

RERBAYLRRER - NP HERE K
BT BERERNER - AR EIEHIE MR
ZHAN (AT ERE)EEER - RERTER
BE - RES  WEEHR  RELRMBRE
R E IR M R 1R o

P BB PITE B 1T A BRI HIRT A5 - AR AT
R EAEEXBLNBREZLENMBER
B EEARREMZE2EAZTEMNR
% o BEETARNE - NEESIPIZA
TR -

- HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH

- D

(XL

71



72

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEER®E (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The management, in coordination with department heads, assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, and monitors the
risk management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Company has
followed internal guidelines to ensure that inside information is released
to the public in a fair and timely manner. The senior management of
the Group’s financial control functions are delegated the responsibility
to monitor and oversee compliance with appropriate procedures in
the disclosure of inside information. Only relevant senior management
is entitled to inside information on a “need-to-know” basis at all times.
Relevant personnel and other relevant professionals are required to
maintain the confidentiality of such inside information before it is publicly
disclosed. Other relevant procedures, such as pre-approval of trading
in the Company’s securities by Directors and designated members of
management and notification to Directors and employees of regular
blackout periods and restrictions on trading in securities, has been also
implemented to prevent possible improper handling of inside information
within the Group.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board would review the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least once a year. The Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee as well as the management report and the internal audit
findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the
year ended 31 December 2022, and considered that such systems are
effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial
reporting and internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences
and relevant resources.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Internal Audit Department examines key
issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and
provides its findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 103 to 112 of this annual report.

Where appropriate, a statement will be provided by the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the reasons why the Board
has taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Crowe, in respect of audit services and non-audit services during
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:
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TEER®E (&)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Sau Mei ({h75%%), the director of the Listing Services department
of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services provider),
serves as the company secretary of the Company. Her primary contact
person at the Company is Ms. Wu Guoging, the executive Director.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.
Ms. Wu Guoging, the executive Director, would work and communicate
with Ms. Ng on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Ng has undertaken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various communication
channels.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right to
Call an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Articles of Association and
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands. A copy of the Articles of
Association can be found on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. The procedures for Shareholders to nominate a
person for election as a Director is available on the Company’s website
with title “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director of the Company”.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

The Company also adopted a set of procedures for putting forward
proposals by the Shareholders at general meetings.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board and Company Secretary. The period for
lodgement of such written notice shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order for the Company to inform Shareholders of that proposal, the
written notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

In order to allow the Shareholders to have sufficient time to receive and
consider the proposal of election of the proposed person as a Director,
Shareholders are encouraged to submit and lodge the written notice as
early as practicable.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Company’s principal place of business in the PRC at
Room 108, No. 45 Xinrong North Street, Xihongmen,
Daxing District, Beijing, PRC
(For the attention of the Board/Company Secretary)
Email: zhangchunying@hongkun.com.cn
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.hongkunwuye.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the Company
to the Shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company
will also update the website information from time to time to inform
Shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

Changes in Constitutional Documents

In preparation for the Listing, the Company has adopted the amended
and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association pursuant to a
special resolution passed by the Shareholders on 22 February 2019.
Since then, the Company has not made any changes to its Memorandum
and Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies Relating to Shareholders
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. During the year, the company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholder communication
policy and confirmed that it has been effectively implemented.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not assure that dividends will be paid in the future or as
to the timing of any dividends that may be paid in the future. The payment
and amounts of dividends, if paid, depend on the Company’s results
of operations, cash flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the dividends paid by us, future prospects and other
factors which the Company considers relevant.
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Report of the Directors

The Board herein present its report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 113 of this annual report.

No dividend was recommended by the Board for the year ended 31
December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a discussion on
the prospect of the Group’s future business development, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 11 to 13 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 34 of this annual
report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 11 to 13, Financial Highlights on pages 5 to 6 and Five-Year
Financial Summary on page 204 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

This section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group. It is non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the principal risk areas outlined below. Besides,
this report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are advised to
make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Government Policy Risk

The PRC government has implemented various measures to tighten the
sales and capital raising/debt issuance activities of property developers in
the PRC, which may have a negative impact on their financial position and
business operations. There is no assurance that the PRC government will
not introduce additional or other types of restrictive policies, regulations
or measures in the future that may affect the property development
market. The failure of the Parent Group to comply with such new policies,
regulations or measures may adversely affect its business, results of
operations and financial condition. As a result, the Group may not always
be able to obtain new property management engagements as planned or
on favorable terms, nor is it certain that any new property management
engagements will be obtained, which may have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, growth prospects, results of operations and
financial position.

The Group will keep abreast of the latest regulatory changes in the
real estate development industry (through government websites and
participation in relevant industry seminars) and will communicate with the
Parent Group. The project development plan will be modified accordingly
to respond to new or changed regulations.

The Company will continue to adopt the strategy of expanding its property
management portfolio and focus its marketing strategy on expanding the
Group’s geographical footprint and operations to broaden the Group’s
revenue stream. By adopting this strategy, the Group can ensure stable
property management revenues, thereby minimizing the impact of the
Parent Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Risk of Economic Volatility

Any downturn in the local and global economy or any adverse change in
market conditions will reduce overall business and consumer confidence.
This will adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition,
operations or growth prospects. In particular, the economic instability and
volatile political environment in China caused by the China-United States
trade war and the novel coronavirus may reduce consumers’ spending
power, which in turn may lead to a decline in property sales and affect
revenue from property management services. As a result, the Company’s
growth and profitability may be adversely affected.

The Company will continue to adopt the strategy of expanding its property
management portfolio and focus its marketing strategy on expanding the
Group’s geographical footprint and operations to broaden the Group’s
revenue stream. By adopting this strategy, the Group can ensure stable
property management revenues, thereby minimizing the impact of market
downturns. In particular, the Company developed a development plan
this year, which was reviewed and approved by authorized management.
The program focuses on sending a dedicated team to participate in
tenders held by various property developers, and the Company’s sales
and marketing teams oversee and track the program on a monthly
basis. In addition, the Group has maintained an acceptable level of
liquidity to mitigate the risks associated with cyclical downturns due to
rapid changes in market conditions. Management reviews the cash flow
statement and cash flow forecasts on a monthly basis to mitigate the risk
of a cyclical downturn due to rapid changes in market conditions.
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EEEeHE(A)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Third Party Risk

The Group relies on subcontractors to provide certain property
management services to its customers and the Group may be liable
for disputes and claims arising out of or in connection with the services
provided by the subcontractors.

For subcontractor projects where the contract amount exceeds a certain
amount, the Group centralizes the tendering process. In selecting
subcontractors, the Company will consider not only the subcontractors’
quotes, but also their past performance, if any, to ensure that the
appointed subcontractor can provide a reasonable quality of work.
In addition, the terms of the contract provide for the protection of the
Company from substandard work quality and delayed completion. All
contracts are reviewed to ensure that the terms and conditions are fair
to the Company. Finally, the Company conducts regular performance
evaluations of contractors (e.g., their expertise and suitability). If the
contractor’s performance evaluation is unacceptable, the contractor’s bid
will be suspended.

Industry Competition Risk

Competition in the property management industry in China is fierce and
there are many competitors. Competition in the Group’s industry may
become more intense if new competitors entering the market continue to
increase, or if the Group’s competitors increase the diversity of products
they offer to capture emerging opportunities. The Group’s competitors
may have competitive advantages over the Group, such as a longer
operating history, stronger business relationships with customers,
suppliers and subcontractors, stronger financial, technical and other
resources and a broader geographic footprint in China.

The Group has established a precise positioning: according to the
customer research report, it has set a reasonable definition of the property
management project’s business model, price, cost, removal rate and
rhythm, and has set up countermeasures in advance to sort out the full
project cycle risks. At the same time, the Group strategically conspires
with regional companies to adopt differentiated competitive strategies to
avoid or reduce competition.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ¢

FTERBRTEERE(E)

F=HER

AEBEKEDBEERAEPRTE TYERERE
BRTS - MARSEE A e RAERE D BREATRM
HBRF M 5l A R 2 A 0 R RE
MEE -

HRAHSHRBE " E2RNNERER
AEESTETHEREN -HEEDES
B ARATNMESERDEENRE T
ERMFABENRE(NE) - UERTEE
HDBEEERREHAENTIERE o
AREGERRETREARARITART
FmEREETKANTE - FEARBKER
BE  URRERRGEHARBAF - &
& ARBEMEABHETEME (P
HBEZMANAEN) - M5B REHHEN
EARES - AP EEBIRER -

TTEBFER

TEYPEERETERZ TR BEHT
K% - WEETHNMGFE FHEEM
SARENZFHTFIEMEMMEHRERNS
FIEAIE B ARBITROBRFX
SRR - BAKEMAL - NEEAHS
HFARBEAEASRFINES  fINEEE
EANKERES - BFF HEBEY BB
LENEBBRERE BBEEHEENY
% il R EMERAREDBEER R EZ
BB E R -

AEBOHERBETMN  RIBFMHRE - 8
MEREEFRER BB KA E &
REETRERTE  RAMEERZBEHR
B WREEEER - A AKBEEBEA
AERE AR - REERCBFRE - LR
KT o



Report of the Directors (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has endeavoured
to strictly comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection.

The Company recognizes the importance of environmental protection. The
Company is committed to providing an eco-friendly energy environment
for our staff and has developed energy conservation and carbon
reduction policy so as to minimize negative environmental impacts.

A separate Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for
2022 will be published at the same time as the publication of this annual
report on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, save as otherwise disclosed in this annual
report, and as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by our Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and suppliers and other
persons (together “Stakeholders”) are the key to our sustainable and
stable development. We are committed to maintaining a good relationship
with our Stakeholders so as to ensure our continuing development.

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable assets of the
Company. The Group is providing a fair and harmonious workplace where
individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds are treated equally. The
Group offer a reasonable remuneration package and fair opportunities for
career advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group also
provides our staff with different trainings, including on-the-job training
and training courses provided by professional organisations in order to
enhance our staffs’ career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including contractors) are equally
important in building high-quality property projects. We proactively
communicate with our vendors to ensure they are committed to delivering
high-quality and sustainable output.
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EEEeHE(A)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for each
of the last five financial years is set out in the Five-Year Financial Summary
on page 204 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
13 March 2020 and 100,000,000 new Shares were issued. The over-
allotment option was partially exercised and 5,310,000 new Shares were
issued on 3 April 2020. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately
HK$129.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB116.2 million). The net
proceeds from the Listing were higher than that stated in the Prospectus,
due to a higher final issue price than the median of the range of offer
prices stated in the Prospectus and lower-than-expected underwriting
fees. Such proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that in
the Prospectus which is detailed as follows:
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Disclosure in the Prospectus

RERERPHEE
Proceeds
Proceeds planned
Approximate planned to be to be
net proceeds Approximate utilised in utilised in
Intended use utilised percentage 2020 2021
&R &R
BAZ —E-EF —B-—F
B4 B BAZ BAZ
RERR FRSRRIEFE Elagsd RS RIR FR8RE
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
H&ET A&EET A&
Expansion of geographic &AL FIRAHEH
presence and scale of 3012 R [B] &
operations in the PRC MRS 64.4 65.0% 61.3 3.1
Development and FERREARMNEMRLS
enhancement of our &sxy -k
information system and
technological initiatives 12.9 13.0% 12.9 -
Expansion of our BN MIRILE
value-added services AR 7% 9.9 10.0% 4.7 52
Staff development BTE%RE 2.0 2.0% 2.0 -
General working capital —MREEER 9.8 10.0% - -
Total #eEt 99.0 100.0% 80.9 8.3
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PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (CONTINUED) T ATEE0E ()
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Due to the abovementioned reasons, the net proceeds from the Listing
increased to HK$129.4 million and therefore our expected usage
increased proportionately as follows:

As at 31 December 2022
BE-Z-"F+-A=1-H

Proceeds
Actual planned
amount of  Approximate Proceeds Proceeds not  to be utilised
Intended usage net proceeds percentage utilised yet utilised in 2023
FHEIR
B ZE-ZH
Fri&sA B EBA FBA BAZ
Refg ik BAt Fi&%E FrgsE P&
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
A&ET A8ET AEET AEET
Expansion of geographic presence AR MR E A2 R E
and scale of operations the PRC R 84.1 65.0% 470 371 371
Development and enhancement of RERREARMOENZS
our information system and RETRIH
technological initiatives 16.9 13.0% 2.3 14.6 14.6
Expansion of our value-added
services BB ML ERS 129 10.0% 34 95 95
Staff development ST%RE 26 2.0% 1.0 16 1.6
General working capital —REEES 12.9 10.0% 57 72 72
Total a5t 129.4 100.0% 59.4 700 70.0

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has utilized part of such RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ' ARFER

proceeds according to the use as set out in the Prospectus.
Approximately RMB47.0 million, representing approximately 36.3% of the
actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of geographic
presence and scale of operations the PRC, including acquiring Jiangsu
Wanhao; approximately RMB2.3 million, representing approximately 1.8%
of the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for development and
enhancement of our information system and technological initiatives,
which include building up a resident communication database;
approximately RMB3.4 million, representing approximately 2.6% of
the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of our
value-added service, include setting up a business development team;
approximately RMB1.0 million, representing approximately 1.0% of the
actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for staff development, include
providing training to sales team; and approximately RMB5.7 million,
representing approximately 4.4% of the actual amount of net proceeds,
was utilized for the general working capital.
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PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (CONTINUED)

Due to the downtrend of real estate industry, the supply of new property
in the market decrease, the uncertainty of acquisition pricing raised, we
adopted a more cautious attitude towards the evaluation of acquisition
objectives. Therefore, our progress in utilizing the proceeds from the
Listing was delayed comparing with the plan. The expected timeline for
utilising the unutilised proceeds will be one year, which is based on our
best estimation and will be subject to change in market conditions. The
unutilized proceeds as at 31 December 2022 were deposited in the bank
accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Reporting Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 115 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, details of the reserves available for distribution
of the Company are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 18.0% of the total sales of the Group for the year,
the sales from the largest customer, Hongkun Group, accounted for less
than 15.0% of the total sales of the Group for the year. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 44.0% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year, the purchase from the largest supplier
accounted for less than 18.0% of the Group’s total purchase for the year.
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, except for Hongkun Group, all
of the five largest customers are independent third parties, and none of
the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owned 5% or more of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in any of the five largest customers during the Reporting
Period. The Group did not have any major customers who were also the
suppliers. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, all of the five largest
suppliers are independent third parties, and none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
any of the five largest suppliers during the Reporting Period.

BANK BORROWING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no outstanding bank borrowing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to
76 of this annual report.

EEeRE (&

e

RABHEERREHA 2 &
FRE1VISELAEREBRA -

SRV

A 7k ik

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H  ARQAKA

DIk BN MBS RRMEI5A

FEFFRHEER

RREHR - MAEBAATFHOIEERG
AEBFRNBEHEBETT18.0%  EFxK
BEBHEBMNEEHEEAEEFAHEER
BT E15.0% © MALE A KEEFRHE
B ANEEFANRREETE44.0% - B
MR AREENRBEG RSB FRNAIRE
B TE18.0% o MESFFTAM » BRIBHEE
SN FMTBRARREFHABILE=H BF
= HENBEARBESAEEARAE
BEA5% 8 LA _E R AR B A R 45 HA SR A 1A
AAREFPFREETMELT - REBIWHETM
NAREENEERS - REZMAM - 7
BRAXEERHABIYE=] » BRHREH
N EE BENBBASBESHAES
AR B IR ANE % LA _E B9 {A] AR BB 7Y K
FERE R A (T 4ES -

RITERX

R-T-—FE+-F=+—0  KNEEWLE
REBRITHER -

EEER
ARTHN NG BREZ CREARR -

BREARRTRMECEEAFERNERER
FE6ET6ETEEIATRE ©

i HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH

- D

(XL

85



86

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as Shareholders to
attend and vote at the AGM to be held on 31 May 2023, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 25 May 2023
to Wednesday, 31 May 2023, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2023,
being the last share registration date.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Weihao

Ms. Wu Guoqging (Chairman)

Ms. Li Yin Ping

Ms. Zhang Chunying

Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Yifan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Ms. Chen Weijie
Mr. Leung Ka Wo
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all independent non-executive Directors, and considers them to be still
independent as at the date of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the
meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.

In addition, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Li Yin Ping and Mr. Chan Cheung
Tat shall retire by rotation at the AGM and they being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular which will be despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages 35 to
44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise wide
risk is a priority of the Company. The Company believes that corporate
governance and Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (the “D&O
Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has arranged
appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against Directors and senior management
arising out from corporate activities. The D&O Insurance will be reviewed
and renewed annually.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. The terms and conditions of each of such service
agreements are similar in all material respects. The service contracts are
initially for a fixed term of three years commencing from their respective
appointment date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other,
which notice shall not expire until after initial fixed term.

The non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from his
appointment date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other,
which notice shall not expire until after the fixed term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from their respective appointment date, which may be terminated by not
less than 7 days’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, no other Director have entered into service
contract with the Company which are not determined by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance,
to which the Company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
Reporting Period.

There are no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
to the business of the Group between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during
the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance for the provision of services
to the Group by a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were
made.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty in their
respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
Director.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance to protect
the Directors against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims
brought against the Directors.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at

31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of
taken

the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which

were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in our Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held (L)"°*’ shareholding
EEpnE ERMEE RO EE (L) BOFRBE D
Mr. Zhao Weihao Interest held jointly with another person; 237,780,000 58.67%

interest in a controlled corporation™ee2

HEZEE Bifth A HFEFEE IR - R IEAE R
Ms. Li Yin Ping Interest in a controlled corporation®ete3 48,488,000 11.96%
FFTL+ S B e
Notes: it -

The letter “L” denotes the long position in our Shares.

Ascendor Futur Holding Limited (“Ascendor Futur”) directly holds
237,780,000 Shares. Ascendor Futur is wholly and beneficially owned by
Will Full Holdings Limited (“Will Full”), which is in turn beneficially owned
by Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin as to 98.62%, 1.00%
and 0.38%, respectively. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao
Bin together indirectly control all Shares held by Ascendor Futur. Mr. Zhao
Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin are parties acting in concert
pursuant to the Deed of Acting in Concert. By virtue of the SFO, each of
Will Full, Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares in which Ascendor Futur is
interested.

Winz Strategy Company Limited (“Winz Strategy”) directly holds 48,488,000
Shares. Winz Strategy is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Li Yin Ping. By
virtue of SFO, Ms. Li Yin Ping is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Winz Strategy is interested.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report }j

A0

1. FEILEREARRROBOEE

2. BRELREARAR((REE ) HEESES
237,780,000 & 5 - BRiEEHREEIERE
RAR([ERE2EERES - MEMAH
WEZEE R LT REWELED B
75 98.62% ~ 1.00% % 0.38% ° #HE=x
A RUT Ao KR O AR R R PR Il gk =
WEBMNAMERG  RIE—BITEHRIE - #
BRAE RULZETRBEEEE—RTH
AT o RIBFEHFRAE G - ER - HES
Sdk s R LT REWEERBREANE
ELEAREEMERSE RO EE#ELS -

3. YRR ARAR([HRRE ) HEEES
48,488,000% A% 17 » S\ AR R EH T+
2EERMA - REFFRBEEG - 5%
SRR BRI RS A S A R 8
BRI ARER o



Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associated corporation of our Company
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Approximate

Name of associated Number of percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares held (L)’ shareholding
EEpnE RS ERtE RO E (L) BOFRE DL
Mr. Zhao Weihao Ascendor Futur Interest held jointly with 1 100%

another person; interest in

a controlled
corporationtre?

Hifth A HL[FIFEE B R
KBS R 2

HWEZREL

Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares.

2. Ascendor Futur is wholly and beneficially owned by Will Full, which is in turn
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin as
t0 98.62%, 1.00% and 0.38%, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register
which were required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18
had been granted any right to subscribe for the Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any
such right during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to eliminate competing business with the Group, on 23 July 2019,
Beijing Herun entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company
(the “Deed”).

In compliance with the Deed, Beijing Herun has made an annual
declaration on their compliance with the non-competition undertaking.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is not aware of any
other matters regarding the compliance of the undertakings in the Deed
that are required to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged in.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s policy on determining the emolument payable to Directors
are based on the skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs
and the performance of each Director, together with reference to the
profitability of the Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry,
and prevailing market conditions. To enable the Remuneration Committee
to give better advice on the Group’s future remuneration policy and
related strategies, the Remuneration Committee has been advised of
the Group’s existing remuneration policy and succession plan, such as
guidelines on designing employees’ remuneration packages and related
market trends and information.

The details of the Directors’ emoluments and senior management’s
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons and entities, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of Shareholder

Nature of interest

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
Shares held (L)’

HEBRITREN
RER AR RS PR3 8 B (L) 7 FRENEIL
Ascendor Futur Beneficial owner'oe2 237,780,000 58.67%
W B2 A2
Will Full Interest in a controlled corporationte2 237,780,000 58.67%
B3y A E R
Ms. Wu Hong Interest held jointly with another person; interest 237,780,000 58.67%

in a controlled corporation™ete2
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Mr. Zhao Bin Interest held jointly with another person; interest 237,780,000 58.67%
in a controlled corporation™ete2
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Ms. Wang Qian Interest of spouse™ced 237,780,000 58.67%
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Winz Strategy Beneficial ownerhee4 48,488,000 11.96%
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1.

The letter “L” denotes the long position in our Shares.

Ascendor Futur directly holds 237,780,000 Shares. Ascendor Futur is wholly
controlled by Will Full, which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Zhao
Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin as to 98.62%, 1.00% and 0.38%,
respectively. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin together
indirectly control all Shares held by Ascendor Futur. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms.
Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin are parties acting in concert pursuant to the
Deed of Acting in Concert. By virtue of the SFO, each of Will Full, Mr. Zhao
Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Ascendor Futur is interested.

Mr. Zhao Weihao established a discretionary family trust (the “Family Trust”)
as settlor for the benefit of himself and Exclusive Summit Limited, which
is wholly owned by him. On 23 April 2021, the Company was informed by
Mr. Zhao Weihao of the completion of the Family Trust arrangement, which
comprises: (i) the transfer of the entire issued shares of HK Alpha Base
Holdings Limited (“HK Alpha Base”) from Mr. Zhao Weihao to Hongkun
Alpha Investment Limited (“Hongkun Alpha SPV”) (which is held by J.P.
Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited (“JP Morgan Trustee”) in its
capacity as the trustee of the Family Trust); and (ii) the issuance of non-
voting shares by Ascendor Futur to HK Alpha Base, after which, Ascendor
Futur is held as to 99.00% by HK Alpha Base and 1.00% by Will Full.

For the avoidance of doubt, JP Morgan Trustee (or other vehicles set up
underneath it for the purpose of the Family Trust, including Hongkun Alpha
SPV and HK Alpha Base) will not control Ascendor Futur since all shares
issued by Ascendor Futur to HK Alpha Base are non-voting in nature. Mr.
Zhao Weihao (in his own capacity and through the Family Trust), Mr. Wu
Hong, Mr. Zhao Bin, Will Full and Ascendor Futur remain as the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 April 2021 for further details.

Ms. Wang Qian is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Weihao. Ms. Wang Qian is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Zhao Weihao is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

Winz Strategy is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Li Yin Ping. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Li Yin Ping is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Winz Strategy is interested.

Mr. Chan Sheung Chi is the spouse of Ms. Li Yin Ping. Mr. Chan Sheung Chi
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Li Yin
Ping is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose and participants of the Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the Board on 17 February 2020. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable our Company to grant
options to any employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent,
client, partner or joint-venture partner of our Company or any of our
subsidiaries (including any Director or any director of our subsidiaries)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise engaged by
our Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted to
such person under the Share Option Scheme or any person who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to our
Group (the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of our Group.

Grant and acceptance of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, our Directors may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. An offer
shall be made to an Eligible Participant in writing in such form as our
Directors may from time to time determine and shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of 21 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme or the termination of the same.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible
Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which are offered to such
Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the Eligible Participant, together with a non-
refundable remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.0 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company within
such time as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from, and inclusive of, the date of offer).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Grant and acceptance of options (Continued)

Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in respect of less
than the total number of Shares which are offered provided that it is
accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.

Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price of Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined at the discretion of our Directors but in any event will not be
less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme together with options
which may be granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of our Group shall not exceed 40,000,000 Shares, which
represent 10% of the issued Shares as at the Listing Date. Our Company
may seek approval from the Shareholders at general meeting to refresh
the 10% limit provided that the total number of Shares available for issue
under options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of our Group in these circumstances must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of our Company as at the date of
approval of refreshing of the limit. The limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other share option schemes of
the Group must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.87% of the issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Maximum number of Shares (Continued)

Unless approved by our Shareholders in the manner set out below,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an Eligible
Participant would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such further grant representing in aggregate
over 1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Participant and his close associates (or his associates if the Eligible
Participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by the Board to each grantee at the time of
making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any event no later than
10 years from the date of grant.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option shall be
exercisable in whole or in part in the circumstances by giving notice in
writing by the grantee to our Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is so exercised.
Each such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable remittance
for the full amount of the subscription price for Shares in respect of which
the notice is given. Within 21 days after receipt of the notice and, where
appropriate, receipt of the auditor’s or the independent financial adviser’s
certificate, our Company shall accordingly allot the relevant number of
Shares to the grantee (or his legal personal representative) credited as
fully paid. Though there is no specified minimum period under the Share
Option Scheme for which an option must be held or the performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised under
the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, our Directors
may make such grant of options, subject to such terms and conditions
in relation to the minimum period of such options to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved as our Directors may determine in
their absolute discretion.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing from 17 February 2020 and the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme as of the date of this annual report is around 6
years and 10 months.

Movements in the Share Option Scheme

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to 31 December
2022, no options had been granted or agreed to be granted, and thus no
options had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme. As a result, the total number of Shares available for grant under
the Share Option Scheme as of 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022,
respectively, was 40,000,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the Board confirms that the Company
has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules as at the
date of annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13 September 2021 (after trading hours), Beijing Hongkun, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Hongkun Weiye
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, Hongkun Weiye agreed to dispose of, and Beijing
Hongkun agreed to acquire the property located at No. 205, 2nd Floor,
Block B, No. 1 Hong Fu Lu, Daxing Qu, Beijing, PRC, at a consideration
of RMB22.76 million (equivalent to approximately HK$27.39 million) (the
“Acquisition”).

As at the date of the Acquisition, Hongkun Weiye is beneficially owned
as to 98% by Mr. Zhao Weihao. Mr. Zhao Weihao is our Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, and therefore Hongkun Weiye
is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As such, the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and has complied with
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the reporting,
announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 September
2021 for further details of the Acquisition.

The (i) royalty-free use of trademarks; (ii) royalty-free use of software
copyright; (iii) provision of property management, property developer
related and value-added services constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Royalty-free use of trademarks and royalty-free use of software copyright
were within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules and were exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 25 February 2020, we entered into a master services agreement
(the “Master Services Agreement”) with Beijing Herun, in relation to
our continuing provision of property management, property developer
related and value-added services to Parent Group (the “Parent Group
Services”) with term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022. The
annual caps under the Master Services Agreement for the two years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the financial year ending 31
December 2022 are RMB95.0 million. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the amount of the Master Services Agreement was RMB49.1 million.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) either on normal commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third

parties; and

(iii)  according to the agreements governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The auditor of the Company has performed certain predetermined
procedures and reported its findings regarding the continuing connected
transactions of the Group set out above for the year ended 31 December
2022 and stated that:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the above continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board.

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company.

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the above continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of
the Company has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
confirmed the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In prior years, the Group had made the Refundable Deposits under the
Agency Services Agreements and certain payments as non-refundable
deposits to connected persons of the Company in relation to the
property developer-related services rendered under the Master Services
Agreement. These deposits would constitute notifiable transactions and/
or connected transactions of the Company, and would be subject to the
relevant requirements under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules. In
addition, during the Reporting Period, the Asset Transfer would constitute
a notifiable transaction and would be subject to the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Further announcement will be
made by the Company in relation to the aforesaid payments and their
implications under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related party transactions set out in note 30 of
the consolidated financial statements fall within the scope of discloseable
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected transactions
of the Group are in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising Mr. Chan Cheong Tat as chairman
as well as Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka
Wo as members, has reviewed, together with the participation of the
management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 December 2022, we entered into a new master services agreement
(the “New Master Services Agreement”) with Beijing Herun and
Hongkun Weiye, in relation to our continuing provision of property
management, property developer related and value-added services to
Parent Group (the “Parent Group Services”) with term from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025. The annual caps under the New Master
Services Agreement for the three financial years ended 31 December
2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB45.0 million, respectively.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired
several properties from its related parties, which were held by Beijing
Hongkun Weiye Real Estate Development Co. Ltd* (1 58 #i{E ¥ i E
F9 25 A PR A A]), at a consideration of approximately RMB2,515,000. The
amount of such consideration payable was offset against the amounts
due from the related parties as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements as disclosed in this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant events of the
Group after 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEeHE(A)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Upon Listing, Deloitte had been the auditor of the Company. As the
Company could not reach a consensus with Deloitte on the audit fee for
the year ended 31 December 2020, Deloitte resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 31 December 2020. With effect from 29 January
2021, Crowe has been appointed as the new auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte. Save as the
aforesaid, there has been no change in its auditors in the preceding three
years.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
audited by Crowe. It is the auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on its audit, on those financial statements and to report
their opinion solely to the Company and for no other purpose. They do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

Crowe will retire as auditor of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
itself for re-appointment at the AGM.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 103 to 112 of this annual report.

By order of the Board

Ye Xing Group Holding Limited
Wu Guoging

Chairman and executive Director
29 March 2023

*  For identification purposes only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YE XING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEEEBZERERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ye Xing Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 203, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B AR E (E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEITER

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgment, was BRETFEEBBERMNEXHE - BB

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements HABMGEHBREANEAZREENS
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 1B BLEBSERERMBAEBRSMBR
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming ZREAZRRETEEDN - R Teta
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these LETRRMHEFNER -

matters.

Key audit matters

BRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMHEFANAEEREETSR

Impairment of trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties

E 5 REMEW R R EWLTE T R B

We identified impairment of trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties as a key audit matter due to
the significance of these balances to the consolidated financial
statements and the involvement of subjective judgment and
estimates made by the directors of the Company in determining
the expected credit loss (“ECL”) for these balances.

RN E 5 K H e Wk IE B e UL B33 05 SRR A eR Bl AR & BT T 4R
RNWEZE - AR BRAFEFEETEZSARNIENEERE
([EREEEFE RS REBHE R - Bt - ZABEES R
o PR GRIE I FE U BRsE 5 OB R E s m AR AT R 1E o

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
and amounts due from related parties were approximately
RMB77,763,000 (net of allowance for credit loss of
approximately RMB44,665,000) and RMB82,524,000 (net of
allowance for credit loss of approximately RMB38,579,000),
respectively, as set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, which represented approximately 18.7%
and 19.8% of total assets of the Group.
RZZZ_F+_A=+—H  EX£ENEZEUGIEREKEH
EHESFIENEELES AR ARKET7,763,0007T (2 HAKRE
EEBEBELDH AR 44,6650007T) R AR T82,524,0007T (2
MK EEHBRENARES8,579,000T) ARl BHREAE
ER#)18.7%19.8% ©

The directors of the Company assessed the impairment of trade
and other receivables and amounts due from related parties
based on valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer (the “Valuer”).
NAIEFRBBE L EGER ([ (HEM ) ETHEE M TE
5 FEMSU TR RN B At FE KU A % e Mk R g 5 FRIB BRUE -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of trade
and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties included:

FAPIEEE 5 Ko oAt e W s T I e Wk B8 05 SR IEDRUEL B B Y
BFeE:

° Obtaining an understanding of the ECL model
applied by the directors of the Company for the
estimation of the impairment of trade and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties;
B RN FEE R MR EHE 5 0 HE IR A K% R g
TS IEREN TR EEBIERL

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

FHEHERNER - BN RFEIL

° Understanding and challenging the Valuer’s
valuation methodology, significant assumptions
adopted and significant unobservable inputs used
in the valuation;

BRI E S BRI EETE - RRANEZRELA
REETERNEE T ATEBEA

° Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of ECL, on a sample basis; and
EHMERER DAAEREEE R EN BB LR
"R

° Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment of trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties in notes 20, 21
and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
FHERA M EIREMTE20 - 21F30F AR E S AE
At JRE U5 R B R (B DA K2 B 0T P LKORRIE ) BR ©



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HRETSE

B RS (E

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERNEST N ARERRENSE

Impairment of trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties (continued)

B 5 RAMGERRRIEK FFZET B BB ()

Impairment of trade receivables was made using simplified
approach under HKFRS 9, except for customers which have
been identified as credit impaired, impairment of such trade
receivables was assessed individually. The management
used provision matrix under simplified approach to assess
impairment, the provision rates are based on groupings of
various debtors by their ageing, which are considered of similar
loss patterns, and taken into consideration of the historical
default rates and the forward-looking information. For individual
assessment of trade receivables, the management considered
the specific factors, such as the creditworthiness of the debtors,
the ageing of the balances and the forward-looking information.
2 ZRECRERERIET BV B R EEFOREB AL ITEL
7 BREHIRERRENESIN  HILEESRKFETES
Al o EREFEAM A TR EBER R ERE  BEXRE
RTREBANKRRYE - ZRBONERENX  UEEFELE
HERMATEIEERN - YRBSRBKWERFE - BEEEZERT
BREE  nEKANEAE  EREMATEEE -

For other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
impairment was made using general approach under HKFRS
9. Under the general approach, management used estimations
and judgments to estimate default rates and loss rates under
different stages by making reference to the credit rating and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.

S0 LAt JE MR A R U e 77 FIR - IR B TS R AR S 95k
B —MRIETIRAE - E—RFET - EBERBLERERITIR
MERBEBEEZNREEE - €A FHE R A AR
BB LR AMIBRE o

For trade receivables which are collectively assessed
using simplified approach under HKFRS 9, with
the assistance of our valuation specialists where
appropriate:

HRIRBEE AN BREENEIRTHWEEHEETE
HFRHEEE SRR - EHRMOEEZROHE T (1ni#E
) - B

° Assessing the reasonableness of the grouping
used by management by evaluating the credit risk
characteristics of these receivables;

BA R E L RENERRBRSE . FHEERE
RN ENEIRT

° Obtaining and testing the ageing analysis of
the trade receivables, on a sample basis, to the
underlying financial records;

ERIARE ZRBRABRRONTE - AR RE
- SRR ISR BT T AT

° Evaluating the appropriateness of historical period
selection and evaluated the reliability of the key
data input to calculate historical default rate,
including historical credit loss experience and
current status of each portfolio, trade receivables
lifetime recovery information and other relevant
data; and
FHEE L RS R EE M - WA AR ERE S
BOXNBARENRMANTENE  BREELERA
KicmINEEKREASNWERNRE  BFRKAE
BEIWCEFMEMAREER - &

° Evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
condition and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors.

FHEE R B ERDRIEE B M EE LK

A=EREMEENET T EEHAE -
- BEEBRRERAT —B-—FEH
- )
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B AR E (E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HRETSE

ERETSEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERNEST N ARERRENSE

Impairment of trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties (continued)

B S RAM W RREL FFE T R BB ()

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

A

7y

For trade and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties which are individually assessed using
general approach under HKFRS 9, with the assistance
of our valuation specialists where appropriate:
HRRIBEARYBREENFSR T —RITEETES
AT A B B 2 e SRR EL A R WK K R LA B e 0T R - R
P BHERNWHE T (@Em) - 2 -

Assessing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s judgments
on classification into one of the three stages
required by HKFRS 9 by challenging the criteria
for determining if a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred (stage 2) or if the receivable
is credit-impaired (stage 3) by examining the
relevant supporting documents or information on a
sample basis to evaluate if there has been timely
identification and consideration of changes in
credit risk; and

mBE T ERRRSTEEEIN(FLEER) I IE
WERFE R B A EARME(EIER)HIRE - FHEE
BEND A EBVBREERDESRERKHN =1
EERe —HHEHNSBEMEE T - BRMRRE
HEAEREEAETIREE MRERMEET
BEERRNEL X

Evaluating the appropriateness of inputs and
assumptions applied in the determination of
impairment, including staging classification,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default and forward-looking information.

FHE AR EERENEATNRRNES T 25
HoR - BOME  BROBEX  BOARMATEGE
Bl o



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HRETSE

B RS (E

ERETSEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERNEST N ARERRENSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R ER IR B EHE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB29,709,000, which was mainly resulted from
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Jiangsu Wanhao
Property Services Limited in 2021. Management had to perform
impairment assessment of goodwill annually in accordance with
HKAS 36.

HE2-Z-_—F+-A=+—H BHENKREEEAARE
29,709,0007C * B-_E - —FWBIHEZMERBERA A
100%BHEFTE - EREMARBEESSHEFEICRFFHHE
HETTRIERTE °

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key
audit matter due to the directors’ impairment assessment of
goodwill based on the ‘value in use’ of the Group’s underlying
cash generating unit (“CGU”) that involves judgements and
estimates about the future results of the business, and key
assumptions including revenue growth rate, long-term growth
rate and the discount rate applied to future cash forecast.
MK EBRENERE A ERRETSE  BAEESIRE
SEARReEFST((REELER DN HREREHEEE
ITRERHE - ZAHE S R R R EB AR AE NG - URE
FRALREREANBRER  RAEREMERATARREE
AIEBEERE o

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment included:

AR RBR ER AE TR

° Discussing with the management to understand
the management process in impairment
assessment of goodwill and the key estimations
made by the management in the impairment
assessment of goodwill including growth rates in
revenue, estimated profit before tax and pre-tax
discount rates;

HETRE R - AR EREN AN EIRIRIZA
NERBAEBEREN T MEOREREET - 2%
WASRRE - (S BT AN AT IR X

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the growth
rates in revenue and estimated profit before tax,
with reference to current financial position and
historical financial performance;
2RE R BARME L% 4E - FHERAER
EMEEAHAF BN SN

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the financial
forecasts approved by the management by
comparing the actual results of the CGU to
the previously forecasted results used in the
impairment assessment of goodwill;
BREBRCEFEMNERARBBEREANL
ROTEDRIAS RAETT LB - AEAR B IR E LA H0 A1 5 T8 A

MERM
- BEEBRRERAT —B-—FEH
- )

(XL

107



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HRETSE

ERETSEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERNEST N ARERRENSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

BB R EERIER B S ()
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A0

Evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the
key assumptions to understand the impact of
reasonable changes in assumptions on the
recoverable amount;

A EREEHERRRETHORRED TSR
M UBRBRROS B HAINE S ENTE

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the VIU
calculations, on a sample basis; and
AR HirE @ BEEAENBSEERM
K

Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures related to goodwill impairment
assessment in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

SRR B S OF B S 3R AR B 5 rp B s EORUE AT A
B BRENTME



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

B RS (E

HtEH

BERREEFHHEMENAE - RMEHE
BHERFRANES - BETEREEEHME
HR BRI RS

RMHRAMBRRNE LL TRERME
BRPATH RS S AR BRI TR

EVEERE A am o

HmaRMEGEEMBEREANEN  HANE
ERMEEMER - FutiBiEd - ZEHEM
ENEDREAMBRRARMESTIBE
THERENERFEENEBREUTFE
BEREREGANER - EREMESHITHT
1 IRBEMRREMENFEEARERR
i RABEREZFE - £E @ - B
RAERE

ESNEREMRSYBHRRAR
EZEE

ERRIEFEARREREEHMASEM
R BRI EER R EE R BRDIR R E
ZREBEEMPENGREWHERE - LY
HERB/RESAMBREOEE T FERAR
MEF R ME BN ERBRBAFFTHOA

MEHAE -

ERBEEVBRRE EFRENE B
SEFERLENRS  XHEERBERTHE
HFEKEABNEIR  URERFELE
REFER  BIEFHEERS EKEBR
ST LR - KB EEMERNERNE -

EREABEEER BEEMNUEHRESIHERE -
i HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B AR E (E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

B RS (E

BB e M B RREAEE
ZEE &)

o  HERRMAHELESTERNREN
A o IRIFFTEERESHERE - T
ERAFHEAEFHENENEHAEART
RN MR ReE R BEEENE
BISERNEEERRE - IREAIR
REEERTETELE - B LEEZE
B EhIRAEAE I B M BHE
TEEREINE - REARMEETE
ARMEEERIFBRREER - TMH
fEREENZEERE B IEPIESHE
FHERRE o A RRFHSLBRNATESE
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EETERRBEIXZMEIE °
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is therefore
the key audit matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2023

Tsui Kar Lam Karen
Practising Certificate Number: P06426
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

SERaRHEMEERER

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

2022 2021
—ECCHE —E-—F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
WisE AR¥TFT AREFT
Revenue I 6 343,498 336,828
Cost of services ARTE A 2N (276,475) (247,198)
Gross profit EX 67,023 89,630
Other income =N 7(a) 2,965 4,057
Other gains or losses, net E ) F W E1E 7(b) 2,088 1,691
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MTRARZER 28 - (2,401)
Administrative expenses TR (49,167) (43,693)
Impairment loss of trade and other B 5 R H M FEUGRIE R (E B 18
receivables, net HE 8 (38,420) (4,074)
Impairment loss of amounts due from FEUS BAR T R E &R
related parties 8 (38,579) -
Selling expenses HER (1,892) (972)
Interests on lease liabilities HEABEZFE (39) (65)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(E1E) & T 11 (56,021) 44173
Income tax credit/(expense) FTis R e, (FX) 9 4,149 (12,966)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FEEE), A REE
(loss)/income for the year (E518) Wasia%E (51,872) 31,207
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive THIEEFE(ER), SRR &
(loss)/income for the year attributable to: 2 E (E518) Uk 2548%8 ¢
— Owners of the Company VNI UN (51,909) 30,723
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 37 484
(51,872) 31,207
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB cent) R (EE),/ BRIAKES)
— Basic - 7 12 (12.81) 7.58
e id BERXEERARAT —E-—FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARRE

As at 31 December 2022
RNZZEZ—F+=-RA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
st AREFT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 14 41,741 38,017
Intangible assets | EE 15 15,754 18,866
Deferred tax assets BT IA A E 16 13,019 -
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17 898 1,165
Goodwill 5SS 18 29,709 29,330
101,121 87,378
CURRENT ASSETS RENE R
Properties held for sale BHEFEEE 19 6,562 -
Trade and other receivables %%&ﬁ’rﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂlmlﬁ 20 86,447 108,775
Amounts due from related parties R B 7 BUR 21 82,524 106,276
Tax recoverable RIEdEEAE] 4,380 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 22 135,219 167,139
315,132 382,190
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 M HMpERFRIE 23(a) 126,423 116,719
Contract liabilities aNarE 23(b) 69,141 81,202
Lease liabilities HE&E 24 60 538
Tax liabilities HIAEE 4,161 3,812
199,785 202,271
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 115,347 179,919
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 216,468 267,297
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES #u.éwﬁ{*
Lease liabilities 4" S8 G 24 130 180
Deferred tax liabilities BRI E 16 3,564 2,548
3,694 2,728
NET ASSETS FEE 212,774 264,569
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR B
Share capital AR 7R 25 3,650 3,650
Reserves i 208,470 260,379
Total equity attributable to owners of the SFENARGHE ANER
Company e 212,120 264,029
Non-controlling interests DB R 654 540
TOTAL EQUITY R 212,774 264,569

FIUBHAZF203AMGAMIERREEED
R-E-=F=Z/f— +71E|ﬁtx§&ﬂréé$u
UMBATEERESE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

WU GUOQING R Bl
DIRECTOR £%#

ZHAO WEIHAO # &%
DIRECTOR %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z-—#+-_A=+—HIEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AARHEE AERE Non-
Share Share  Statutory Capital Retained controlling
capital Premium reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests Total
BRE  RBEE  EERE  ERRE RERA Mt FERER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hizta) (Kiztb)
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=—%—A—H 3,650 179,495 18,403 (15,725) 47,483 233,306 56 233,362
Profit and total comprehensive & #FI R 2E
income for the year gyt - - - - 30,723 30,723 484 31,207
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEEETHE - - 4,018 - (4,018) - - -
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_—-%
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-8k
—“T--%#—-HF-H 3,650 179,495 22,421 (15,725) 74,188 264,029 540 264,569
Acquisition of a subsidiary YRR - - - - - - 77 77
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEERZE
loss for the year EiRsE - - - - (51,909) (51,909) 37 (51,872)
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEEETHE - - 336 - (336) - - -
At 31 December 2022 i S—
+-A=+—H 3,650 179,495 22,757 (15,725) 21,943 212,120 654 212,774

Notes: Kt

a. The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net profit for a. EEREIRRIBEABETEARLME (] F
the year of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China Bl ) AR B R R B BT A R &Y F AL
(the “PRC”) (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements) IR BB A 78 BUE E B 3 ) i
in accordance with the relevant PRC laws until the statutory reserve reaches e AERATREEINZEMB LA
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve MEREI50% © BrIEARIEIE R T EEHIG
cannot be reduced except either use to set off the accumulated losses or MEAR - FRIREDEAETE Ff -
increase capital.

b.  The capital reserve represents: (1) the considerations paid by the Group b. BARREE  OREESEHEEAEED AR
in excess of the paid-up capital of respective group entities upon group BREEEEERHZEANESRE QA
reorganisation; (2) the capital injection paid by Winz Strategy Company FEARAE([GEEKME])ZTHTERR
Limited (“Winz Strategy”) in excess of the paid-up capital of Beijing b RE Y EERARAR ([T EHEH )R
Hongkun Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hongkun”) (as detailed SESEHEENHEER  QNREEEHELY
in Note e) upon the group reorganisation; (3) elimination of share capital of SHAE B 2 IR (4R EEEAARRETT
Beijing Hongkun upon the group reorganisation; and (4) issue of shares of KRFLZ’D o
the Company upon the group reorganisation.

c. On 13 March 2020, the Company capitalised the sum of HK$2,999,900 c. RZZTZZTF=A+=0 " ARaBARAF
(equivalent to RMB2,701,000) standing to the credit of the share premium A7 348 (B BR 3 BR - 582,999,900/ T (B E 7
account of the Company and applied such sum in paying up in full at par ARHE2,701,00070) B EAR - ARIKEE
299,990,000 shares for allotment and issued to existing shareholders. 24 £ 299,990,000 8% A% 10 AR 3% K 2417 T 3R

BRE -
aD

-
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

mEERESER(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-—_F+-A=+—HItFE

Notes: (Continued)

On 13 March 2020, in connection with the Listing, the Company issued
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (a public offering in Hong
Kong of 50,000,000 and an international offering of 50,000,000 shares) at a
price of HK$1.56 per share (equivalent to approximately RMB1.40 per share)
for a total of HK$156,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB140,437,000)
with issuance costs amounted to HK$12,119,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB11,001,000) being charged to the Company’s share
premium account.

In addition, on 3 April 2020, the over-allotment option in connection with the
Listing was exercised and as a result, additional 5,310,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.56 per share (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.43 per share) for a total of HK$8,284,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,598,000) with issuance costs amounted to HK$543,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB495,000) being charged to the Company’s
share premium account.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
:-v_\éiﬁﬁ)‘ﬁi%‘%

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-CF - —4F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
st AREFT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(E1E) 5T (56,021) 44,173
Adjustments for: TP
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERERETE
equipment 6,762 4,808
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 267 1,188
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 3,112 1,628
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE KRB
equipment &8 12 4
Bank interest income RITHBUA (1,509) (2,377)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MFREIZEE - 2,401
Impairment loss of trade and other H 5 & H M e RIEH]
receivables B E 38,420 4,074
Impairment loss of amounts due from FENS EER T R B S 1B
related parties 38,579 -
Interests on lease liabilities HEREZNE 39 65
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ YMEMERE ) 2 & (1,115) 551
Operating cash flows before movements  &iE& & & B) AT LS
in working capital REmeE 28,546 56,415
Increase in properties held for sale BEEFEEEMEN 1,326 -
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5) N Eo A FE WIS A0 (23,946) (32,514)
Increase in amounts due from related JEL #8388 75 FRIEIE N
parties (14,889) (58,907)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 REMPERFIE
payables i, CRd) 9,162 (9,013)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilites &% &ECRA), 10 (12,061) 15,789
Cash used in operations KEFRARS (11,862) (28,230)
Income tax paid EATATSH (11,885) (9,882)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEBHFARAREFHE
ACTIVITIES (23,747) (38,112)
- pRgEEERERAT —$-—F58 117
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERERERE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EC-CHE —E-—F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
kg AR¥EFT AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Advance to related parties & 77 2 (33,997) (35,218)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WEREE
equipment (10,443) (24,935)
Repayment from related parties TERAE T ER 34,059 35,652
Interest received BT B 1,509 2,377
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising from WE—BTRaZFERE
acquisition of subsidiaries WA CRit) 151 (45,132)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal HE—ERNBARZ
of subsidiaries FREME - (2,767)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEMRER
and equipment FriS 5038 - 18
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZDHRAREFE
ACTIVITIES (8,721) (70,005)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BESEE
Principal paid for lease liabilities HEaGB ENES (528) (1,808)
Interests paid on lease liabilities HEaBZEMNFE (39) (65)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEBRMARESFHE
ACTIVITIES 26 (567) (1,873)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH  R&RBELEEER R FHE
EQUIVALENTS (33,035) (109,990)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHOZ2RERRAELEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 167,139 277,680
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE HNEEZSBHE
RATE CHANGES 1,115 (551)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRRELEEER -
AT END OF THE YEAR AND BRITHERRRS
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 135,219 167,139
118 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ‘1



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Cayman lIslands Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) on 26 March 2019. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are stated in the section “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Ascendor Futur, a
limited company which was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the British Virgin Islands.

The shares of the Company have been listed on Main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 March 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services and commercial operational services, and
the particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 32.

The consolidated financial statements is presented in RMB, which is
the same as the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) .
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For the Year ended 31 December 2022
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—E-—F+-A=+—HItFE

January 2022

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs

(i) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17 (including the
QOctober 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

The above new and revised HKFRSs are not applicable
for annual periods beginning on or before 31 December
2021. The Group will apply these standards to its financial
statements for the first time in the annual period beginning on
1 January 2022 or later as appropriate. The Group is currently
evaluating the potential impact of these standards on its

financial statements.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts'

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause®

3. ERHMITREBITEBYBR
HER(H)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and companies controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary or business begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary or business and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary or business. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date of the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary or business.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries or business is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE

B+ -_fF=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
accounting. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

ab

-

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

EXETTEEE)

EHavt

Wl 2675 (RRHE I T M558 BHRSM)
RAMBET AR - FBAMH2EENK
BRAFEFE - MABETEREAEE
FrgE s BE W ASATE K&
B R BT A AR E 2 BERAR
5 B BL IR UL R U7 PR AR T BT T 2 B
a2 AR o WIEAERAE A — IR E
ARTEIRETER o

PAUEE B HA - FTURE AT 38R B B K P
ERETNWE B AHERR -
AT BESLERID -

s ERENEAEXABNEERF
ZH 2 HAAEREED HIRE
BEENE12RAFHEEE
FETERIZE 19588 B R R R N

e

o WRBTHARMNAERZNRE
BESUARER B RT S ARD B2
Z IR E BB U B 7 AR D
RERZRZHHERZ B ENL
AR T AT IS B BIRBEA
MIEHmEERFAE

s  REFEMHEREEAFELRS
FHEZIFRBEERDKILE
EBEBDERFIELEZEE
(R EARDIRZERGE - Rk

EEEEZRERAT

)

(XL

TECFEFR

125



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same amount as
the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market
terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially stated at costs and subsequently
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

ab

-

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

EXETTEEE)

B MEREERRE(HE
BRIM (2 EXNBREENS
AR

REREHR - NEER HAIERF
HERNAL RETEEMNREE - XA
BEROATNTSBIAXFEEDE
ERERR o HiFEEFAUETR - Al
SHRAEENARE S BIEL G
AHEEREEE (A ) MIZE

i EAMGFHERNEEN TR E S - A
AEEEMHFZEEMBNRSELSE
IR AT SR - R —EAIEA
—BHDBEE  AAREENSES
REEERRSELFEMN - HTIENAE
ERREeELEM - RIESAREER
REERNAEA -BNEESEEH/
R EEBLES -

AT YA e R AR A TR B A AN B
REETHESE - EFEERER
B - EEERKR S RESRARBAR
BEFREARE - ZHEHATRRER
R 1 B M B (B (B HO & BT T 45 3T Ak 7%
BE(EREELEM)FAENRRCR
HREBFHRGERRRERE)

EEEEZRERAT

)

(XL

TECFEFR

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing
The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee at the lease commencement
date, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate;
° the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

The lease liabilities are presented on a separate line in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

° the lease payments changes due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to
a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised
discount rate is used).

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liabilities, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under HKAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-use
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful live of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented on a separate line in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components a single component. The Group chooses to
use this practical expedient.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

Control of the service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the service is transferred over time if:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the service transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the service.

The Group provides property management services, property
developer related services and value-added services to property
developers, property owners and residents. Revenue from providing
services is recognised over time in the period in which the services
are rendered.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Qutput method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing services to a customer,
the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified service before
that service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified service by another party. In this
case, the Group does not control the specified service provided
by another party before that service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified services to be provided
by the other party.

Property management services

For property management services fee income from properties
managed under lump-sum basis, where the Group acts as principal
and is primary responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners, the Group recognises the fee
received or receivable from property owners, which is a fixed
amount, as its revenue and all related property management costs
as its cost of services. For property management services fee
income from properties managed under commission basis, where
the Group acts as agent, the Group recognised its revenue on a net
basis. On a commission basis, the Group charges a pre-determined
percentage at 10% of the total property management fees received.
Any direct cost under the property management service agreement
shall be borne by property owners and residents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Property developer related services

Property developer related services to property developers and
other property management service companies mainly include
property planning and design consultancy services, pre-delivery
inspection services, sales assistance services, post-delivery repair
services or a combination of these services at the pre-delivery
stage to property buyers. The Group agrees the price for each
service with the customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to
the customers which varies based on the actual level of service
completed in that month.

Value-added services

For value-added services, it includes community-related services
ranging from utilities services, household repair and maintenance
services to other value-added services that meet the daily needs
of the property owners and residents. Revenue is recognised
over time/at a point in time in the period when the related value-
added services are rendered. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately when the value-added services are rendered to the
customer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and state-
managed retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deduction of any
amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit during the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances and cash) are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend but includes interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains or losses” line
item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit-risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognised lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
i.e. analysis of trade receivables by aging and apply a probability-
weighted estimate of the credit losses within the relevant time band.
The probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses is determined
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that related to the Group’s core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and
other receivables from individual customers, amounts due
from related parties are each assessed as a separate group.
Trade receivables from customers which significant balances
are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual
basis); and

. Past-due status.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management of the Group

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next twelve months.

Impairment assessment of expected credit losses
for trade and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to estimates the
amount of loss allowance for ECL on trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related parties that are measured at
amortised cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments. The loss allowance amount is measured as the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows with the consideration of expected future credit loss of the
respective financial instrument. The assessment of the credit risk of
the respective financial instrument involves high degree of estimation
and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments) amounted to RMB77,763,000
(net of allowance for credit loss of RMB44,665,000) (2021:
RMB99,748,000 (net of allowance for credit loss of RMB6,245,000))
as disclosed in Note 20 and amounts due from related parties
amounted to RMB82,524,000 (2021: RMB106,276,000) net of
allowance for credit loss of RMB38,579,000 (2021: Nil) as disclosed
in Note 21.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB29,709,000 (2021: RMB29,330,000) as disclosed
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with finite useful lives

In determining the recoverable amounts of these assets, expected
cash flows to be generated by the assets are discounted to their
present value, which involves significant levels of estimates relating
to sales volume, selling prices and other operating costs. When
a decline in an asset’s recoverable amount has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment amounted to RMB41,741,000 (2021:
RMB38,017,000) as disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, and intangible assets with finite useful lives
amounted to RMB15,754,000 (2021: RMB18,866,000) as disclosed
in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Valuations of identifiable intangible assets acquired
upon business combination

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
completed a business combination during the year and intangible
assets and goodwill totaling approximately RMB16,894,000 and
approximately RMB29,330,000 respectively were resulted from the
acquisition. The fair value of intangible assets and the purchase
price allocation were supported by valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer. The Group used judgement
in making the assumptions on key estimates including revenue
growth, useful life of the intangible assets and discount rate based
on the Group’s past history, existing market condition and forward
looking estimates.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
(i) property management service, (ii) property developer related
services, and (iii) value-added services.

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group, for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the revenue analysis of each operating
segment in the provision of property management service,
property developer related services and value-added services of
the Group. Other than the revenue analysis as set out below, no
operating results and other discrete financial information including
geographical location by operating segments relating to provision
of property management service, property developer related
services and value added services is prepared regularly for internal
reporting to the CODM for resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B A R R B AL ()

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is presented
as these information are not regularly provided to the CODM for

WAREIN D BEERDEEEN DT -
THEZEFEMLRER R T E2RE

review. REEER -
Revenue from major services FERBHNER
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARHFr
Type of services ARTEERRY
Property management services W EIER 290,233 259,197
Property developer related services Y% P 2 i B R AR 15 18,773 43,462
Value-added services AR 34,492 34,169
343,498 336,828
Type of customers KPR
External customers SN 325,886 287,687
Fellow subsidiaries CE ) SYNS| 17,612 49,141
343,498 336,828
Timing of revenue recognition U 5 AR B [
Over time —BREMA 336,920 323,681
A point in time O AE 2L 6,578 13,147
343,498 336,828

Performance obligations for the provision of property management
services, property developer related services and value-added
services are either for a period of one year or less or bill a fixed
amount for each month of services provided. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from customers is derived solely from its

operations and services rendered in the PRC, and the non-current
assets of the Group are all located in the PRC.

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

6. Wk EER ()
s e B
RS 0 E P (5 B R B 2

MR H RS - AREEIEREEE
BRIAFRE -

Information about major customers FERPER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing MEFEAEAEELRKZE10%A LN
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: FPlgzsan T
2022 2021
—ECCHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AT T

Fellow subsidiaries (Note) EEA YNG9

N/ATE A 49,141

Note: The fellow subsidiaries are companies in which the Controlling
Shareholders has beneficial interest. During the year ended 31
December 2022, revenue from the fellow subsidiaries amounted to
less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 7.

LOSSES, NET

(a)

HW ARt F RS RE R

Other income (a) HMUA
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARHFr
Bank interest income RITHLEMA 1,509 2,377
Value-add tax refund BEBR 1,456 1,680
2,965 4,057
Other gains/(losses), net (b) HFka= (EE)
2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYMTFT AREFr
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ H&E%E - BHE M EENEE
equipment (12) (4)
Government subsidy (Note) BT R (47 52) 1,238 2,326
Net exchange gain/(loss) [ 5 as(518) 1,115 (507)
Others Hh (253) (124)
2,088 1,691

Note: The government subsidy mainly represents subsidy received
from relevant government authority for supporting the
Group’s property management business in the PRC during
the pandemic (2021: supporting initial public offering of the
Company’s shares in 2020). There are no unfulfilled conditions
and other contingencies attaching to it.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 8. REBEEMFEE
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AR¥TIT

Impairment loss recognised on: BRI EEE
Trade receivables — third parties BHREKRIE-FE=7 9,000 3,267
Other receivables — third parties HERRIE—E=7 29,420 807
Impairment loss of trade and other E 5 NA MW IR R EEE
receivables 38,420 4,074
Impairment loss recognised on: EHERRERE :
Amounts due from related parties JENL S T B
— trade nature —E5HE 38,162 -
Amounts due from related parties e RS 7 B
— non-trade nature —FESHUE 417 -
Impairment loss of amounts due from FEUR BAR T R E R 1R
related parties 38,579 -
76,999 4,074
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 December REZE-Z-__FR-F-_—F+_H
2022 and 2021 are set out in Notes 20 and 21. =+ —BIFERET G F SRR

FE20 K fisE2l -

i HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 8B (ER) X
2022 2021
B —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Current tax BNERRTE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FRCEMSHR(TEEREHE]) 7,854 14,115
Deferred tax (Note 16) RIERIB (HT7716) (12,003) (1,149)
(4,149) 12,966

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. During the year, certain subsidiaries
of the Group was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 20%
(2021: 20%) for small and micro enterprises with the first RMB1
million of annual taxable income eligible for 75% (2021: 75%)
reduction and the income between RMB1 million and RMB3 million
eligible for 75% (2021: 50%) reduction.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Company and the group entity incorporated in the BVI are
not subject to income tax in the Cayman Islands or any other
jurisdiction.
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9.

The income tax (credit)/expense for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

FrEBi(ER), B ()

HEZT=-Z —ET=Z—F+=A
=+ —BLIEFEMREHAX BRTATG
FIRIRAR A B M E M 2 E I m R AL
BRI -

2022 2021

—E-F T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT

(Loss)/profit before tax BRALAT(E51R), 5 (56,021) 44,173

Tax at the applicable tax rate REAB R ENTIR (13,473) 11,473

Tax effect of preferential tax rate EERENH BT E (338) (806)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PP TS 2

for tax purposes 8,588 3,013

Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERDIEE BN S 2 970 958
Tax effect of income not taxable for AW AT IE 2

tax purpose (310) (588)

Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR,(BEERE) 414 (986)

Others Hith - (98)

(4,149) 12,966

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the
Company (including emoluments for the services as employees of
the group entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company)
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follow:

BEE  BSITBRAERESH
[

REBEE_Z-_—_FR-_ZF-_—F+=-A
—t+—BIEEFEE BN ENAARE
ENe(BIEXNAARARZEZSINE
EERETEEMEERENIHNE)FF
BT

2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTFT

Directors’ fee BEHEE

Other emoluments A 357 A
— salaries and other benefits — ¥ REMEF 2,673 2,916
— discretionary bonus —BBIEAL 467 300

— contributions to retirement benefit —RIREFIFHEI R

scheme 232 225
3,372 3,441

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. E5  E5TBRAEBREESH

158

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) BN (&)
Salaries Contributions
and other  Discretionary  to retirement Total
Fee benefits bonus benefit scheme amount
HeR BARER
kA Htb3ER BfEwA eI &g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-EC-Cf%
tZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors HirEZE
Ms. Wu Guoging REMRT - 1,322 250 125 1,607
Mr. Zhao Weihao HERLE - 24 - 10 251
Ms. Li Yin Ping =500 - 174 - 9 183
Ms. Zhang Chunying REENT
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (EBR-E-—%+A+AH) - 400 217 88 705
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Li Yifan F-REE
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (FRR=F=-FtA+H) - - - - -
Independent non-executive director BUHHTEE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung REMEE - 134 - - 134
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELAE - 134 - - 134
Ms. Chen Weilie RigEat - 134 - - 134
Mr. Leung Ka Wo DFAEE
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (ER-E-—%+A+A) - 134 - - 134
Total A3t - 2,673 467 232 3,372
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--%
tZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors HiEZE
Ms. Wu Guoging REMRT - 1,417 100 115 1632
Mr. Zhao Weihao HERLE - 378 - 18 39
Ms. Li Yin Ping =500 - 233 - 12 245
Ms. Zhang Chunying REELT
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (EBR-E-—%+A+AH) - 376 200 80 656
Non-executive director HHTEE
Mr. Li Yifan F-REE
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (FRR=F=-FtA+H) - - - - -
Independent non-executive director BUFHTEE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung REMEE - 147 - - 147
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELAE - 147 - - 147
Ms. Chen Weijie RigEat - 147 - - 147
Mr. Leung Ka Wo DRAEE
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (EBR=E=—F+AtA) - 71 - - 7
Total &3t - 2,916 300 225 3441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

10. EF  BSTTRAEBRESH
M(Ilg)

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Kret - ERAITERHNARSHERAA

Note: The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director’s and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services as directors of the Company.

The discretionary bonus is determined based on the performance of
individual and market trend for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two directors
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: two). The remunerations

B R AR B RIS ARTE HOFFBN o
IR ESME N FH IR
RABZ/AFARBHEENS -

WA EREE - —FR-F
——F+-A=t+—BIEESEA
EERTHBEET -

BE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIHF
= $E@£%EE%MAi@%ﬁ

of the remaining three individuals (2021: three) for the year ended 31 BER(ZZEZ—F :WE) - BE
December 2022 are set out below: T ZFEFA=+—BIEFE " ﬁ%
T=BAL(ZZ=—F : =H)0%
BanT
2022 2021
—E=-= —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT AREFTT
Salaries and other benefits e REAMET 1,513 1,664
Discretionary bonus BIBTEAL 416 323
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme iR K& Flt &K 290 257
2,219 2,244
The emoluments were within the following bands: FHENEE T ¢
2022 2021
—ECCHF -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARHTFT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T 2 3
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no emoluments REE-T-_—_FR-T-—F+=
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid R=1t—HItFE - "EEHERET
individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to MESHAEEaTMAL(RES
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In FEREB)ZHEMBE - fEARRS

addition, no directors waived any emoluments during the years ended

MAZIARE B E RS S ERBE

31 December 2022 and 2021. BAE o it REBEZT-=FK
—E-—F+-A=+—HItFE-
BESERETANE -
b pEEmERERAT —T-—f£5% 159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under retirement benefit plan utilised
to reduce future contributions.

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11

EE  BETHABREEF
B (48)
HE-_Z-_—_Ffr-_FT-_—%F+=-A

S+—BILFER - AEEEMEERR
DRI ERIERIFBLLUR 3 -

. BRBLAT(E5E), BRI
2022 2021
B8 —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTFT ARETTT

(Loss)/profit before tax for the year has R (E518), & QHIER A T &8

been arrived at after charging: 1FH
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 7 A

— audit services —ZH AR 1,600 1,700

- non-audit services — H AR 700 600

2,300 2,300

Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) EEME(HE10) 3,372 3,441
Other staff’s salaries and other benefits ~ Hh 8 T & M H & F) 117,867 76,283
Other staff’s contributions to retirement  H#h B T Z R{KA&EFIFH 8 2%

benefit scheme 18,817 16,186
Other staff’s contributions to housing HWET 2 FEATEEHR

provident funds 3,883 2,706
Total staff costs BT A4 143,939 98,616
Depreciation for property, plant and M - BERERETE

equipment 6,762 4,808
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 267 1,188
Amortisation of intangible assets B 3,112 1,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

12. SR (EE) BF

BRER(ER) BNRENGBRA
A8 (EE), S FIBRARFEITNER
B BEt EmE -

ERAEE ANEEERER(EER) &
MEETE TR A TR

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AR¥TIT

(Loss)/earnings for the year attributable ~ SERER(EE) B M s HOEAR

to owners of the Company for the BB AEETE (BR),BF
purposes of basic (loss)/earnings

per share (51,909) 30,723
2022 2021
B8 —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares shares
RDBE ftn 88

Weighted average number of ordinary HERER(ER) BAMSHE

shares for the purposes of basic & i1 8
(loss)/earnings per share

o

405,310,000 405,310,000

No diluted earnings per share is presented for each of the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as there is no potential
ordinary shares in issue during those years.

BHE—_Z-_—_Fk=-T=-—F+=H
=T+—HIEEFE  HREIBEEEREA
o DRZEFETEEENDRITE
B o

i HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH

- D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. K2
BETEBRNEE T -_—FR-F
T+ A=t+—HILFENER

B o
o

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

162

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and
and building  improvement equipment Total
RELH & BE
kEF HE#E RERRE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTL AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 W-Z-—%-f—-H 1,073 14,486 5,321 20,880
Additions RE 22,338 7 2,520 24,935
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27) WE—MT AR - - 101 101
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) LE—HTARM728) - - (127) (127)
Disposals st - - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZFZ-F+ZA=+—AR
“2--"%-f-H 23,411 14,563 7,791 45,765
Additions AE 6,945 1,665 1,833 10,443
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RTRR - - 55 55
Disposals HE - - (47) (47
At 31 December 2022 ANE-F+-R=1-H 30,356 16,228 9,632 56,216
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2021 NZEZ-F-H—-H 204 24 2,587 3,032
Provided for the year FERE 51 2,975 1782 4,808
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) HE-RTFRARN228) - - (90) (90)
Eliminated on disposals RLEREH - - () ()
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZFZ-F+ZA=+-HR
“Z--%-f-H 255 3,216 4,217 7,748
Provided for the year FERE 1,198 3570 1,994 6,762
Eliminated on disposals REEREH - - (35) (39)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=+-H 1,453 6,786 6,236 14,475
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 W_E-—F+-A=1-H 23,156 11,347 3514 38,017
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZ%+-A=1-H 28,903 9,442 3,396 41741

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their estimate useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of
the term of land lease
or 20 years

Leasehold land and building

Leasehold improvement 5years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 310 10 years

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired
a foreclosed property at a consideration of approximately
RMB6,946,000 through a judicial auction. Hongkun Weiye was the
property developer of the foreclosed property.

14.

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—F+_-_A=1+—HItEE

ME - BERRE(E)

Ltz - BRE REREE B IR EMAE
AE RIS R AR RIBEER

RAEGEE Y SF L RETIE
HELHEEF + b FH HA sk 204F
(A E B%E)
AERE 54
XA BEEEER 3F10%F
B

BHE-_Z-—_F+-RA=+—HIEHF
€ - AEBELHAREB6,946,0007TH)
REERNEHEPWE T —EEED
¥ o BB AR INMEN Y ¥R
7o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
Software Customer
copyrights  relationships Total
e EFBE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTL ANREFT ANREFT
COoST KA
At 1 January 2021 R=ZE-—%-A 5,000 - 5,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27) KE-FHER (i/fzﬁ) - 16,894 16,894
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and ZE--4+tZA=t-H -ZZZZf-A-H
31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=1-H 5,000 16,894 21,894
Amortisation By
At1 January 2021 e S g 1,500 - 1,500
Charge for the year FREY 1,000 528 1528
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE--F+-A=+-AR=F--F—-A-H 2,500 528 3,028
Charge for the year ERXH 1,000 2,112 3,112
At 31 December 2022 RZTZZF+-A=1-H 3,500 2,640 6,140
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%+-f=1-H 2,500 16,366 18,866
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—&+-A=+-AH 1,500 14,254 15,754
i BEEEZRERAT —B-—F5H

-

)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Hongkun Holding
developed two mobile applications called Hongkunhui* (%i#&) and
H-Butler* (8% ZX). Hongkun Holding agreed that the Group can use
the above copyrighted software on a royalty-free basis. In order to
expand the functions of the mobile applications, on 10 June 2019, the
Group entered into a software copyright transferring agreement with
Hongkun Holding, pursuant to which Hongkun Holding as vendor sold
and the Group as purchaser acquired some copyrighted software
(i.e. Hongkunhui* (J&1#%) and H-Butler* (8 & %)) at a consideration
of RMB5,000,000. The Group visualise Hongkunhui* ( & 1 & ) as a
platform for the development and dissipation of new value-added
services, whereas H-Butler* (% & ) as the key supporting tool for
staff in carrying out daily functions.

The software copyrights have finite useful lives and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over 5 years.

The customer relationships were acquired as part of a business
combination completed during the year ended 31 December 2021
(Note 27(b)), which represents property management service
contracts. They were recognised at their fair values at the date of
acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 8 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

16.

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

IESERL A

RTEAHTBRAERFPIHR - BHE
IEFSTHEEMBECWIRN - RN
IR E B RSB TER ST
T

2022 2021

—E-F T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBTFT

Deferred tax assets BRI ITRE E 13,019 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBBE (3,564) (2,548)
9,455 (2,548)

BEREHRCERNELEHBFEE

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the KEEmT
current and prior year:
Fair value
Impairment adjustment
loss on business
of receivables combination Total
EWEER AQARSHER
HEEBE AAEERE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT  AREFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2021 RZZE—F—H—H (549) - (549)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27) WEE—FFRRI(Het27) - 4,204 4,024
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) HE—MTRAR(HZ28) 22 - 22
Credit to profit or loss (Note 9) ERER BB (MEE9) (1,017) (132) (1,149)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZB-_—F+-_f=+—8K
—E-—%—fF—H (1,544) 4,092 2,548
Credit to profit or loss (Note 9) ERER Sk EE(Mat9) (11,475) (528) (12,003)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+-A=+—H (13,019) 3,564 (9,455)
e 4 pEXEBERERAT —B——&4% 165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB7,714,000 (2021: RMB3,835,000) available to offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses, respectively, due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses in the PRC will expire from
2023 to 2027.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated statements of financial position in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB64,452,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB100,691,000), respectively, as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group leases office premises and staff quarters to operate
its business. Property leases are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain various different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The average lease term are 3 years (2021: 3 years) for the years
ended 31 December 2022.
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A AR A S AR AR EABIEEEAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EAEEE(E)
RMB’000
AREFT
COST B
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—F—HF—H 6,722
Additions i 1,300
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27) g —RF B (Mat2e7) 242
Termination of lease MERIE (4,694)
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 RZZEZ—F+=A=+—A8H"
and 31 December 2022 T =F—RF—HK
T F+-HA=+—H 3,570
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 5,911
Provided for the year FERME 1,188
Termination of lease HERIE (4,694)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HRK
—E-_F—F—H 2,405
Provided for the year FERE 267
At 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-——F+=-A=+—AH 2,672
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-"A=+—H 1,165
At 31 December 2022 R=ZB=Z=H+=HA=+-—H 898
The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other rAEBEmkEMEARGEEREE TYE
comprehensive income contain the following amounts relating to FAHEN T
leases:
2022 2021
—EC-C8F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR¥TT

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEENE 267 1,188
Interests on lease liabilities HERGEZFE 39 65
e 4 BEEEERARAT —B-—55H 167
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-_—%+=-f

—t+—HILtFE

18. GOODWILL 18. B8
RMB’000
AREFT
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNTS BARREEE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZBE-ZZTF—F—H —ZE-FTF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—AKkR=ZZE=—F—HF—H 1,519
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27) Wi —fEF el (fit27) 29,330
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) HE—MFRRI(H£28) (1,519)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—HEK
- —#—HA—H 29,330
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 18(b)) Y —MF R a (MsE18(b)) 379
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-_—F+=A=+—~1 29,709
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill (a) FEERREIGR

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
completed the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Wanhao”) at a consideration
of RMB47,000,000, which resulted in the recognition of
goodwill of RMB29,330,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of the entire equity interest in Tianjin Hongsheng
Property Management Co. Ltd., (“Tianjin Hongsheng”).
The goodwill with carrying amount of RMB1,519,000 was
derecognised and included in the determination of loss on
disposal of a subsidiary.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s goodwill
acquired through the business combination is allocated to
the subsidiary which was regarded as a cash generating
unit (“CGU”). The recoverable amounts of CGU have been
determined on the basis of value-in-use calculations. The
value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial forecast approved by the management of the Group
covering a 5-year period (2021: 5-year period).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

18. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18. F9E(H)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued) (a) RERREARE)
Goodwill allocated to the CGUs and key assumptions used in DEEHNSREEEAEUNEER
calculation of recoverable amounts of the CGUs are set out FTESRESEAENIKEESE
below: FERBRAOT
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-=_f+=-A=+—H

Annual
revenue Terminal Pre-tax
growthrate  growthrate discount rate
CGU Principal activities Goodwill (Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
KEFERE KERRE HARRE
ReELEN TEEHR B (Kati) (Hetii) (Hiitiii)
RMB’000
AREFT
Jiangsu Wanhao Provision of property management 29,330 6.5% 3% 15.7%
services
THER RUEMETERS
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H
Annual
revenue Terminal Pre-tax
growthrate  growth rate  discount rate
CGU Principal activities Goodwill (Note i) (Note i) (Note ii)
WEFERE KEERE  WARRE
BEEESN FEEH B (Histi) (Hiztii) (Histin)
RMB’000
ANEETFT
Jiangsu Wanhao Provision of property management 29,330 6.5% 3% 16.4%
services
THER RUEMEEERE
i pEgEEERERAT —$-—F5% 169
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Annual revenue growth rate is based on the existing charge
rates and revenue-bearing gross floor area of the properties.

(i) Terminal growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry.

(i)~ The management of the Group considered market and industry
data to develop the weighted average cost of capital for the
value- in-use calculation.

The management of the Group determined that there is no
impairment of the CGU containing goodwill for the acquisition
of business during both years. The management also
considered that any reasonably possible change in any of
the assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of
goodwill below its carrying amount.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to
goodwill of approximately RMB379,000 attributable to the
acquisition of 65% equity interest in 7z HEE AR AR by
the Group (note 27).

No impairment test carried out for this CGU as the
management considered the amount is insignificant.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale represent 193 units of car parks acquired by
the Group which are held for sale, they are initially stated at costs
and subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

In prior years, the Group entered into several sole agency services
agreements (the “Agreements”) with a former fellow subsidiary
(the “Counterparty”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide agency services to the Counterparty, by sourcing potential
purchasers and providing assistance in entering into sales
contracts with buyers with respect to unsold car park spaces and
shops developed by the Counterparty (the “Agency Services”).
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Agreements, the Group was required to pay
the refundable deposits (the “Refundable Deposits”) up to the
total minimum sales price of the car park spaces and shops to
be sold under the Agreements. Upon expiry or termination of
the Agreements, the remaining sum of the Refundable Deposits
in respect of unsold car park spaces and shops, if any, will be
refunded to the Group in full.

Upon expiry of the Agreements, the Counterparty has not yet
refunded the Refundable Deposits to the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group purchased 232 units of the
unsold car park spaces from the Counterparty at a consideration of

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-—F+-A=1+—HILFE

. FRGEEE(R)

REWTE  AEBAXNIRERS
(THRIMERERE ) @R TNEERE
W 5E HE B MAE RSN REAEE -
BRI HIS AR LR - RE R B
MFIBAIRIERS (B B2 BRER
AREHE -

HEEEE  XHEFHRAAEE
REBERES REEZZTZ_ZF1+=
B=+—8 XE@BUHARE
7,888,000 RIS BN R 5 ¥ F iU E

approximately RMB7,888,000, which was offset with the Refundable Bo32MAREHZEN - ZEER W]
Deposits. RIBIRSHE -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZRHMEWRIE
2022 2021
B8 T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARKTFT ARETFT
Trade receivables B S EWGRIA 82,632 52,890
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (13,915) (4,915)
68,717 47,975
Other receivables: Hth eI IR
Refundable Deposits AREZ S (a) 30,566 38,454
Deposits Ee (b) 435 774
Prepayments SELNEE 8,684 9,027
Payments on behalf of residents REPHFR (c) 4,717 5,000
Advances to staff A8 TR 2,322 5,210
Others HA 1,756 3,667
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEEIERE (30,750) (1,332)
17,730 60,800
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R E AW GRIEREE 86,447 108,775
i BEEEZRERAT —B-—F5H
-2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Refundable Deposits represent amount paid to the Counterparty as
disclosed in Note 19.

In June 2022, the Counterparty provided an undertaking (the
“Undertaking”) to the Group, pursuant to which the Counterparty
committed to refund the remaining balance of the Refundable
Deposits of RMB30,566,000 to the Group by 30 September 2023.
In addition, the Counterparty has guaranteed to obtain the Group’s
approval before selling certain properties (the “Assets”), proceeds
from the sale of the Assets will be distributed to the Group with
first priority. In case if the Counterparty is not able to refund the
Refundable Deposits by 30 September 2023, the Assets will be
transferred to the Group to offset with the Refundable Deposits.

In February 2023, the Group had become aware that according
to a civil ruling issued by Xinwu District People’s Court, Wuxi City,
Jiangsu Province, an application for the bankruptcy and liquidation
of Counterparty had been accepted. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 17 February 2023.

The Group engaged an external valuer to assess the ECL on the
Refundable Deposits and an allowance of RMB30,566,000 was
made as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB769,000), considered the
maximum exposure to credit loss as the Counterparty is in liquidation.

(b)  The amounts represented the deposits paid for staff quarters, Point of
Sales machines and tendering activities. The deposits are refundable
in the next twelve months at each of the end of the reporting period
and therefore the amounts are classified as current assets.

(c)  The amounts represented the amounts paid on behalf of residents to
the utilities service providers for the services provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HILHFE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BEFRHEAMERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Property management service income is generally required to be
settled by property owners and property developers on the date
upon issuance of demand note.

The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days for its
property developer related services and value-added services to its
third parties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, before the
impairment allowance presented based on the date of demand note

MEEERBBABEHEIRYER

HENUEIMEE RS

s
KEE

$%@L%%ﬁ%¥ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%&
BEREHA TE=ZHI0ANEEH

AT RE 5 RERIERBERER) &

Rk )

- DERGEEZHHAHE

issued: 5'] :
2022 2021
B8 T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
0 to 60 days 0ZE60K 32,029 23,435
6110 180 days 61E 180K 17,229 8,680
181 to 365 days 181E365K% 14,349 7,455
1to 2 years 1226 6,851 11,590
2to 3 years 2E3F 9,978 1,099
Over 3 years HBIA3E 2,196 631
82,632 52,890
Impairment assessment on trade receivables HEEEBBERABFRNE
subject to ECL model mﬁéﬁfqﬁl RIE AR E AT A

BRIk B BB - EEABNRSYHTF
4 AR #6,2850007TH B 5 FE UK
TEEMEE B - FI#R4976,347,0007T
AREBNE S RKZGNIBSHEEEEME
R EBETE - BERAERAEER
PRBREEXN TR PRI RE -

Except for ECL of trade receivables of approximately RMB6,285,000
due from the Counterparty which is in liquidation, which was
assessed individually, the ECL of remaining trade receivables of
approximately RMB76,347,000 is calculated using a provision
matrix. The provision rates are based on days past due for group of
various customers that have similar loss patterns.

HE—_T-—F#F+-_RA=+—H &
WEBANE ZRBEEBRROAAN
R#6,285,000t(—ZF=—F : AREE

As at 31 December 2022, allowance for credit losses made
for trade receivables due from the Counterparty amounted
to approximately RMB6,285,000 (2021: RMB878,000) and

approximately RMB7,630,000 (2021: RMB4,037,000) were made for 878,0007T) * R F K E 5 EU K
trade receivables from other customers. # 5 ANRET7 630,000 (- —4F :
ARHE4,037,0007T) °
e 4 pEEERRERAT —2-—%%5 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables
subject to ECL model (Continued)

Movement of ECL on trade receivables due from the Counterparty is

20.

B R HMBEWREE)

XEHEEBEREARRNE
5 FEWR IR B BB R (%)

HNEERZHFNE SRR - £E

as follows: HERMNERRBRNEREEEENE
LN

2022 2021

—EC-CHF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARYMTFT AREFr

Gross carrying amount RE® 6,285 6,263
Loss allowance Bk EE (6,285) (878)
Net carrying amount FEREEE - 5,385

The following table of ageing analysis, based on the date of
demand note, provides information about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk and ECL for trade receivables from other customers:

As at 31 December 2022

AT EAE B B OB AT -
IR T AR R S MR O R
EFNE SRR EREEERYE
¥

RZBZZH+ZA=+—H

0-60 61-180 181-365

days days days
0-60X 61-180X  181-365K
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFL ARETT AREFZ

1-2 2-3 Over3
years years years Total
1-2F 2-3F bR ES &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARBTL AREFT ARETR AREFZ

Expected loss rate kil oy pe 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 23.6% 38.2% 41.0%

Gross carrying amount BREE 32,029 17,229 14,327 5,655 4911 2,196 76,347

Loss allowance FEEE (1,71) (952) (792) (1,337) (1,877) (901) (7,630)

Net carrying amount FEZE 30,258 16,277 13,535 4,318 3,034 1,295 68,717
174 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ESRHMEKRREE)
(CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment on trade receivables REREEBEEENERNE
subject to ECL model (Continued) S EBGRIBR R BT ()
As at 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=RA=+—H
0-60 61-180 181-365 1-2 2-3 Over 3
days days days years years years Total
0-60% 61-180K  181-365K 126 2-3F B3 A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT  ABEFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFr  AREFI
Expected loss rate kil sppa 1.3% 7.9% 15.0% 16.0% 37.0% 84.0%
Gross carrying amount EERE 22,784 8,208 7,380 6,523 1,100 632 46,627
Loss allowance ek (301) (648) (1,107) (1,043) (407) (531) (4,037)
Net carrying amount FEFE 22,483 7,560 6,273 5,480 693 101 42,590
The provision matrix is based on historical observed default rates BB IRES ATEHFERE S 8
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for example, the RETFENE  THESHHBZHRA
current and forecasted economic growth rates in the PRC, which B BRI BRI ATIE &R (a0 B
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in which BRIMIBAGLEIERE - RTEBA
the debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or effort. A FTETTEM BB IR LA
Such forward-looking information is used by the management B ZERIEEERAAEEEIERER
of the Group to assess both the current as well as the forecast REFE AR E B 8 & BT T AR R 5
direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Group rebutted the M o ERBAE S EHABREEFE
presumption of default under ECL model for trade receivables over HE - REEHEYNEEER0KR
90 days past due based on the historical continuous settlement KB S EWRFIERIETE R EBEBIBER
by the trade debtors with the Group. Individual customers with BELHWEE - BREREHROEAR
significant balances are assessed individually for the credit risk FHEERREIREEEN T RE
based on their probability of default and exposure of default. The KR B E L - AR AT EEBAR
grouping is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to SEERERN - URREBESEES
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated. AREEER S ER -
b HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
-2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 21. FEWEIE R KIE
Maximum aggregate
amount outstanding
during the year
FEEAEERSHALE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F T —— —E--F T ——
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Trade nature BHME
Fellow subsidiaries RZEHBAR (a) 119,551 104,662 120,506 104,662
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEBEEE () (38,162) -
81,389 104,662
Non-trade nature FESUE
Fellow subsidiaries BESENG (b) 1,552 1,614 11,329 51,163
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEBEEE (c) (417) -
1,135 1,614
Total G 82,524 106,276
Notes: et -

(a)  The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days for its property
developer related services and value-added services to its related
parties and no credit term granted to related parties for its provision
of property management services in which such income is generally
required to be settled upon the date of issuance of demand note.

(b)  The balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-—Z-—S1+-A=1+—RBILFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(©)

The Group applies the general approach to measure the ECL of
receivables from related parties. Under the general approach,
receivables from related parties are categorised into the following
three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit
impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime — credit-impaired.

For amounts classified as Stages 1 and 2, the management assesses
loss allowances using the risk parameter modelling approach that
incorporates key parameters, including probability of default and loss
given default and exposure at default. For credit-impaired assets
classified as Stage 3, the management assesses the credit loss
allowances by estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from
the financial assets.

On 11 and 12 May 2022, Beijing Hongkun Weiye Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd (“Hongkun Weiye”), the holding company of
the related parties, announced that 14.75% of its guaranteed senior
notes was in default in payment of the accrued interest. On the other
hand, the default in payment of interest triggered the default of three
other bonds issued by Hongkun Weiye. Up to the date of this report,
Hongkun Weiye had not reached any settlement agreement with
the bond/note holders. As a result of the above events, the Group
considered that the risk of default by Hongkun Weiye increased and
classified as stage 2, therefore a loss allowance of RMB38,579,000
was made as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, with reference to the financial information
provided to the Group and the review made by the management,
the Group considered the probability of default from Hongkun Weiye
would be close to zero and no loss allowance was made.

. BREELR

Kzt

ab

- D

(XL

IE(HE)

EZ%@%E@%*H%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ(%ﬂé%&ﬁﬁ
HEABENAE  BR-KRITE -
RIE—HRITDE $E%)€§%)J/’/ZE?§|JDMK
Fﬁﬁﬂﬁ REVEL - R BRI E
WD BIA T = ERE R - R
121Iﬂi‘ﬁi%ﬁ1§ﬁﬁ§ﬂé! CER2 8By
BRERBRE-RZERBATE
RS REeRBERBE-—ERAE
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=+—HfEH T AR38,579,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 21. EWEER FIE(E)

(CONTINUED)
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables from related AT RIZHESEREY M EIEES
parties presented based on date of demand note: B SR IERRER AT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
0 to 60 days 0Z60X 7,036 14,166
61 to 180 days 61E180X 11,800 17,762
181 to 365 days 181E365K 10,775 19,047
110 2 years 1226 49,276 45,258
2to 3 years 2E3F 32,375 8,429
Over 3 years 3FEMN 8,289 -
119,551 104,662
22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22, RITEBRRES
The bank balances carry interest at variable rate with an average RITHERIRF BN R B - FHERNE
interest rate of 0.35% (2021: 0.35%) per annum. B0.35% (T = —% : 0.35%) °
178 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report 7/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23. ESNEHEMEAGFERENE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES &
(a) Trade and Other Payables (a) ESNEMENFIE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WisE AR¥FT AREFT
Trade payables 2 SN IA 43,852 36,987
Other payables: HAth T RRIE
Receipts on behalf of residents REPYER (a) 10,453 11,948
Deposits received Bz e (b) 36,358 34,208
Accrued staff costs JEETE TR 21,064 14,989
Accrued contribution to social st R REE
insurance and housing provident ~ Af&&
funds 6,547 7,830
Other tax payables HAth B IE 5,396 3,269
Accrued expenses FEETRHX 1,851 6,942
Other payables HoAth JET FRIE 902 546

Total other payables H A FUBAREE 82,571 79,732

Total trade and other payables B 5 M EAMENFRIELREE 126,423 116,719

Notes: Bt -

(a)  The balances represented the receipts on behalf of community (a) HEEALEREPWEMIE - AR
residents to settle the utilities bills from utilities suppliers. HEEOKEBHERKERE -

(b)  The balances mainly represented by the utility, interior (b) HHHREFBEAXEEIRAEPUENAA
decoration and rental deposits received from the property- FE - APRBEREERS - BWIER
owners and residents. The deposits received are repayable on SARENRER  ALZSERIEDE
demand and accordingly the amounts are classified as current HARDERE -
liabilities.

- BEEBRRERAT —E-—fE® 179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

23. BEEZRHEMENREREGNE
& (&)

B 5 REMENFIE(E)

Hr - ()

(a) Trade and Other Payables (Continued) (a)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y ()

REEZT-_—_FR-T=-—
F+-A=t+—HLFE &
FAEEHREEOEESHNT
30KEQX - L TARERE
HAENEZAH2IINES

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranges
from 30 days to 90 days during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

FER BRI BRER AT -
2022 2021
—EB-—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Within 1 year 1FER 39,421 29,523
1-2 years 1224 4,219 7,121
2-3 years 2E3F 39 73
Over 3 years 3FLAE 173 270
43,852 36,987
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities represented the advance from
customers for property management services, property
developer related services and value-added services. The
payment terms vary and depend on the terms of the Group’s

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

23. ESRHMENAREBEREHNE

& (&)

(b) &HWRIE
ANEEEERNEERREN
EPEN - MERBHBMRY
REERY - THHRERASR
FAEENNEERRBE D%

property management services contracts. FMIE ©
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EHEBENEFEINT ¢
2022 2021
B8 T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFT ARBTT

At the beginning of year REH) 81,202 67,949
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) & —RFRAR(AFF28) - (2,536)
Receipt from customers upon entering R RE] A A5 P IR

contracts during the year 298,164 295,339
Revenue recognised that was included RFEMEFAA L & B

in the contract liabilities balance at BRI

the beginning of the year (70,126) (56,783)
Revenue recognised during the year ~ RFAEREIERFERZL UK

that was related to receipt from izl kol en

customers in the same year (240,099) (222,767)
At the end of year RER 69,141 81,202

When the Group receives advanced consideration from
customers before the property management service activities
commence, this will give rise to contract liabilities, until the
revenue recognised on relevant contract upon provision of
property management services.

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

EAREENYEEIEREEEH
WRATH R R PR B RER - 5
EEAMAE  BEERUDEE
BRI R AR & AR R

A& HNBERHRN —F R
Bl o

i HEEBERERAT —B-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24. FHEGSE
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTFT AR¥TIT

Non-current FEED 60 180
Current mED 130 538
Total @t 190 718
2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AR¥TIT

Minimum lease payment due: SREERNRBANT ¢
~within one year —15R 68 541
—more than one year but not —1F A HB BB
exceeding two years 68 68
—more than two years but not —2F LA 1B NEBIBS
exceeding five years 68 136
204 745
Less: future finance charge B RREEE A (14) (27)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBENRE 190 718
182 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report 7/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

-

24. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 24. HEABE(E)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Present value of lease liabilities: HEBBNIRE :
— within one year —1F R 60 538
— more than one year but not exceeding —1F LA EBTHiE2F
two years 63 62
— more than two years but not — 2 LA 1B NEBIBS
exceeding five years 67 118
190 718
The Group lease various properties to operate its business and AEEHEZEYEAMEEHER -
these liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease ZEABDEHARAZNEEN KA
payments that are not yet paid. Bt o
The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to AEETEGEEAGEEEENREE
its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s BEM o HE B BEANSE I 5L
treasure function. HEZEEEE o
Extension options are included in certain lease agreements entered AREEHE THE MR A AT
by the Group. Certain periods covered by the extension options BERE - ANAEEREERRBES
were included in these lease terms as the Group were reasonably M TR ERE - AU AR SRR
certain to exercise the option at the lease commencement date. HENE THHCRREZSHER
A o
The total cash outflows for leases including the payments of lease HE-_Z-_—_H#+-A=+—HI%#F
liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2022 are RMB567,000 E-HEReRHAE(BEREEE
(2021: RMB1,873,000). 5 B ARKS67,000L (== —
F : AR®1,873,0007T) °
b

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
Details of movements of authorised and issued share capital of the RATPETE KRB BEITIRANE B FIEWN
Company are as follows: I
Number of
shares Share capital
BREEE RAE &S
HK$ RMB’000
BT ARETFT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FR0.01B LA L B
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2021, RZE-—F5—-HA—-H"

1 January 2022 and —E--F-F-HK

31 December 2022 T -F+-A=+—H 500,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMREN -
At 1 January 2021, RZE—F—F—H"

1 January 2022 and —“E--F—A—HRK

31 December 2022 —E-_F+=-A=1—H 405,310,000 4,053,100 3,650
All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all FrEFOERmB T EMEBERNES
respects. A& o

184 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report 7]

A0



26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or the future cash flow will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows from financing

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

HE

—E-—F+-A=+—HBItFE

26. BEEBMELRENYIK

TRAMASEREZBMELAED
2E  BREASIIFREEY - BER
PREANBERRSREC JRKR
EREBRAEENGRRESRERA
HERBEERDAERSRENAE -

activities.
Non-cash changes
5449
New

At Interests lease A
1 January Financing on lease during  Acquisitionof 31 December
2022 cash flow liabilities the year a subsidiary 2022
R=B-zf RZBZZE
-A-8 MERSH  HEAEHS  AEFREE  WB-BFAY TZASt-B
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARRTR AREFT AREFT ARRTR

(Note 26)

(fi#26)
Lease liabilifies fEafk 8 (567) 39 - - 190

Non-cash changes
#ReEH
New

At Interests lease At
1 January Financing on lease during Acquisition of 31 December
2021 cash flow liabilties the year a subsidiary 2021
RZEZ-E RIEZ-E
-A-A HERGR  MERGNE  KEMEEE  WE-BFRY TZRA=t-R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT

(Note 26)

(Hiz26)
Lease liabies EEE 984 (1,873 6 1,300 %) 718

- BERMERERAT —B-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a)

On 28 February 2022, the Group completed the acquisition
of 65% equity interest in Dongfang Yirun Medical Co.,
Ltd. pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party at a consideration of RMB520,000. At
the date of acquisition, the fair value of total identifiable net
assets amounted to approximately RMB218,000. As a result,
the Group recognised a goodwill arising from the acquisition
of approximately RMB379,000 (Note 18) and an increase of
non-controlling interests of approximately RMB76,000 at the
acquisition date.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
growth and profit potential. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for the income tax purposes.

Revenue and loss contributed by Dongfang Yirun Medical
Co., Ltd. for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
insignificant to the Group since acquisition.

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and loss of the Group for the year will not be
materially different.

On 24 September 2021, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party.
Pursuant to which the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Jiangsu Wanhao (“Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition”). The total
purchase consideration for the Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition is
RMB47,000,000. Jiangsu Wanhao is engaged in the provision
of property management services. The acquisition was made
as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market share of
property management operation in the PRC.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report ¢

27. WE—EMEATR

(a)

R-ZBE-—F-A-+N\H XK
SEERBBR A mHEES
RAGE - REEBYE=ZHF
AIMEBEHE  REAARK
520,0007T ° RUYHE B EY - B
REFEEBNABEENBA
R#¥218,0007T - EIlt - AEEH
PRUREE B RERUIE E £ R B L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2022
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27. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 27. WiE—REWEB LR (E)
(b)  (Continued) (by (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the REEIHERAH  EWRE
date of the Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition was as follows: ENBENALEBENT ¢
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
UK B BF
BRNARER
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Intangible assets (Note 15) mILAEMF15) 16,894
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)  ¥1% -« BB R&E (Wit 14) 101
Right-of-use assets (Note 17) FREEBERZ17) 242
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AR 4,916
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 1,868
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFERFRIE (1,809
Tax liabilities HIBEE (76)
Lease liabilities HEBE (242)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 16) RETIBE E (M7 16) (4,224)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value EERFEEANEBERSE 17,670
Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) g R (K757 18) 29,330
Total consideration satisfied by cash WHERE 47,000
An analysis of the cash outflows in respect of the Jiangsu WEES T # B 2/ BRSO
Wanhao Acquisition is as follows: wm
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash consideration RERE (47,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired R MIRTTHE R 1,868
(45,132)
e id geEmpRERAR —¥-—FF® 187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B A R R B AL ()

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

In respect of the acquired subsidiaries, the fair value of trade and
other receivables acquired included trade receivables with a fair
value of approximately RMB3,186,000. The total gross contractual
amount of the trade receivables is approximately RMB3, 186,000, of
which no balance is expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
growth and profit potential as a result of benefiting from the growing
demand in property management services and the synergies
expected to arise from the acquisition. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Since acquisition, Jiangsu Wanhao contributed RMB6,288,000 and
RMB664,000 to the consolidated revenue and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021, respectively.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been approximately RMB354,340,000 and RMB33,889,000,
respectively.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 3 July 2021 (the
“Disposal Agreement”), the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in Tianjin Hongsheng to an independent third party,
for a consideration of RMB4,200,000 (the “Tianjin Hongsheng
Disposal’).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

28. HE—BNBELQR(HE)

REERH  BERBENREEELDN

disposal were as follows: I
RMB’000
AREFT
Net liabilities disposed of: HERFAE -
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) Y~ BRE R (AT 14) 37
Deferred tax assets (Note 16) BT IEEE (M 16) 22
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H IR 281
Amounts due from the Group FEUAS 52 B 7118 6,910
Amounts due from related parties JFEUL BAR T 718 2,391
Bank balances and cash RITAER R RIE 57
Trade and other payables Z 5 R HMFERFRIA (1,551)
Contract liabilities (Note 22(b)) BRBENE22(b) (2,536)
Tax liabilities HIREE (529)
Net assets BETRE 5,082
Goodwill derecognised on disposal (Note 18)  HERKR IFFERH R E(H1:7#18) 1,619
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary RHE—MAREEREE (2,401)
Total consideration satisfied by cash AR EHE 4,200

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

HE—HMBARNRE MREEE
PERE DT

RMB’000

AREFT

Cash consideration BeNRE 4,200
Net off with amounts due to Tianjin Hongsheng  #E R R B xR 1Rk (A7)

(Note) (6,910)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of it ERRERREEEY (57)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in ALE—HNBRATEENES LR

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary EEWFRLE e (2,767)

Note: Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the consideration payable by
the buyer of RMB4,200,000 should be net off with the amount due
from the Group of RMB6,910,000, resulting in a net payment of
RMB2,710,000 by the Group to the buyer in respect of the Tianjin
Hongsheng Disposal.

Mt REBELERTE  BEFRINORER
AR #4,200,0007T + FEHIH A EE
A JE U R IE R A R 6,910,000 7T 8
T WmEBAEERLERES
BRI E S ARK2710,0007T A
REEHYFFE -

ab
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

30.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The capital structure of the Group consists of non-trade amounts
due to related parties, share capital and reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically and considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital and balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.

29. EXREBER

AEBEBREEANUERAEEE T
BEAHELE  RRBRELEBSK
SR B R REAEH - NEER
BRERBRNEE SR T —

F+=A=+— AL FEARTE -

AEENEARBEIERNEES R
SR ~ B K S o

REEE s EARRE N E BEARNK
AREEERPERBRENAR - WA
IR RS B BETRT A R BT ER X
BOREEHFEEEBEARE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. €@ T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &I AER
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AE#TT
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B BERATENEREE 295,506 373,163
Financial liabilities -y =N
Amortised cost SRR (121,217) (113,450)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes.

The management of the Group monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. The risks included market risk
(including interest rate and foreign currency risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below and remained unchanged during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

30. EWMTA(H)

(b)

ab

- D

(XL

Ea e ARERERE DS E

AEENTESHRTABEES
N EAMEYRIE - AR ETT 3R
B SRUTESRERE  BHRE
BB SRIR - PAR B B TT 3R
E - ZE SR IANFBEREN
AR

REEERERBAIBERTE
DTRBEERKD - LERK
EREASELES@AN DR
%o SRR eEEMEEAR (B
BRERIINERE) - EERR
MnghEgREkE o AWK
ZERBHBEREN T - R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities.

The management of the Group considered that interest rate
risk of bank balances and lease liabilities are insignificant and
accordingly no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries,
and its major receivables and payables are denominated
in RMB. The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from the assets and liabilities which are denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The majority of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions and balances are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

HE

B —FE+-A=t+—HIEE

30. EWMTA(H)

> D

O

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) @ @EhEREREB R REE
policies (Continued) (%8)
Market risk (Continued) TG E ks (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SN [F e ()
The Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets/ REREPARTEERINESE
liabilities are mainly bank balances and other payables at the EREE/BREIEARITES
end of each reporting period and the carrying amounts are as R H A fERTFRIE - HAREES
follows: s
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARHFr
Assets BE
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5,099 8,636
United States Dollars Vv 6,968 6,376
Liabilities aE
Hong Kong Dollars BT (912) (1,107)
Sensitivity analysis BOREE AT
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TRFMAEEE AR N
5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against RASMNSTER EF M T BEE%(=F
the relevant foreign currency. The sensitivity rates used Z—F 5% )MBURE o FTEA
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably ZHBREEREEEHEERNSIE
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive number BB PTIERRTL o NHIES
below indicates the increase in post-tax profit/decrease in RMTEARE SAEINEEERT
post-tax loss for the year where RMB weakens 5% against F&5% s - AN 2 BRI 12 05 F
the relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of RMB against /BB RERBRONER - A
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite R HAEINEDIE B EA
impact on the post-tax profit/loss and the balances below 5% BB BEFHBEEZ
would be negative. FEREEROZE - AR
(=3 -
b

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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For the Year ended 31 December 2022
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) SRTE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) @ @EhERREREBIZEREK
policies (Continued) (%8)
Market risk (Continued) LB (48)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BB T ()
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AT T

Hong Kong Dollars/ BT ET

United States Dollars
Increase in profit/decrease in loss for FERFIL I, EBERLD

the year 557 695
Credit risk EERR

The Group’s maximum expose to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position
at the end of each reporting period. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets. However, the
management of the Group will consider collateral or other
credit enhancements should the need arise.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on amounts due
from related parties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 with
details set out in Note 21. The assessment on recoverability
have been set out in Note 21.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
(
' "

AEEfEGRSEERREE
HAEEERZHF REETT
BEEMELMBER - BREER
ToK B & & R eAR A M R
MEMEMBSECHEATREE
MRREE AN E I ERA EA
ER A M ERERERAR
HEemEEMRBERERBREMHRR
[ o A - AEEEREHNT
Z2EERFRIEMEEER
B

$$lﬂf$::¢&f7f
F+-_A=Z+—HNEERRE
FR TR R E T FOR #@ﬁm
BsE21 o a] B U RS SR T o
21



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2022
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. ERTE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £REREREBIZREBUR

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk with the customers, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new corporate customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances based on
provision matrix and other debtor balances under the general
approach.

Please refer to Note 20 for the ECL assessment of trade and
other receivables and Note 21 for the ECL assessment of
amounts due from related parties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group’s management
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

All of the Group’s liabilities except for lease liabilities set out
in Note 24 are carried at amounts not materially different from
their contractual undiscounted cash flows as all the financial
liabilities are repayable on demand or within the credit period
granted by suppliers at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30.

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

31. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 31.

Related parties balances

Other than the balances with related parties set out in Note 21, the
Group also had the following related parties balances during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

SRIAE)
(c) ERMIAZAHEFE

ARREERE - AV BRE

RIRB R AR S RAE R
SR N REERA D TER
o

FRESHE

FRE TS KRR

BRI sE2 1 Frd 2 BB A aroh - A%
EREBE— T —FR T —F+=
A=+—BLFEFRETIBEER#E
7%

2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR¥TT

Lease liabilities HEAE

- 457
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions

Other than the transactions as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group had the following significant
transactions with fellow subsidiaries of the Group as follows:

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

1. BELHE(E)

BREREMBmREAMM ST BEENR S
I RBEZZE R =—F
+ZA=+—HLFERN  AEEEHAK
FERZEMBRARBUTEARS ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=+—BLFE

2022 2021
—ECCHF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT

Property management, property developer #)Z£%E 312 - ¥ 2 HRE &
related and value-added services HERSE 17,612 49,141
Purchase of leasehold land and building HEHELtRETF - 22,338
Interests on lease liabilities HEBRZNE 27 56
Advances to related parties B 33,997 35,218
Repayment from related parties ERERER 34,059 35,652

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

Compensation of key management personnel

The discretionary bonus of key management personnel during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

BAE iR (&)

TEEEAEHM

TEEBABREE TN _-F
T+ A=+ —BIFENRIBIE
AT

2022 2021
B8 —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTFT ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e REAER 4,534 4,158
Discretionary bonus BIEIEAT 928 672
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme iR /A& FIET 243 634 608

6,096 5,438

The discretionary bonus of key management personnel is
determined by reference to the performance of individuals and
market trend.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the property
management, property developer related and value-added services
as disclosed above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Connected Transaction and Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

32. MEAAFHE

RAREBRH  RAABRTIIMERR
BEER N R

Place and date Equity interest Principal activities
of incorporation/ Registered/Issued attributable to and principal place
Name of company establishment and paid-up capital the Group of business
MBI B EMER BRT TEERR
G wHRAH RBRER AEBEELRE TELEHY
2022 2021
—E-CF —T-—%
Directly held:
BERE -
Ye Xing Holdings Limited BVI USD0.01/ 100% 100% Investment holding, BVI
4 April 2019 USD0.01
BEERERAR ERERNAE 001%E1/ REER  ZERNES
—E-NFRANA 0.01%7T
Indirectly held:
EERE
Ye Xing (HK) Holdings Limited HK HKD10,000/ 100% 100% Investment holding,
12 April 2019 HKD10,000 HK
BE(BE)ERERAA 0 10,0001,/ REEKR  BA
“E-NEMATZH 10,0008 7T
BRI AMEERARAT (M) The PRC RMB31,625,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
18 June 2003 RMB30,000,000 management Services,
the PRC
Beijing Hongkun Ruibang Property e AR#31,625,0007T,/ RENEEERS - PE
Management Company Limited* ZET=F ATNH AR#30,000,0007T
(Note)
R EERERAR (M) The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
16 July 2010 RMB5,000,000 management Services,
the PRC
Beijing Hongkun Property R AR#5,000,0007T,” REMEEERS - T
Management* (Note) “E-TF+A+RA AR5,000,0007T
BUERNERBERAR M) The PRC RMB500,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
25 April 2011 RMB500,000 management services,
the PRC
Xianghe Hongkun Property Service AER#500,0007T, REEMETERS -+
Company Limited* (Note) “E——FpNA-+HA AR #500,0007T
RRBHIRANERBERDR(MZ) The PRC RMB500,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
11 October 2011 RMB500,000 management Services,
the PRC
Dongfang Hongkun Ruibang Property ~ # & AR#500,0007T,/ RENEEERRTE - FE
Service Company Limited* (Notg) ~ —Z——%+HA+—8 AR #500,0007T
HERIMEEBAERAR M) The PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
21 November 2012 RMB500,000 management services,
the PRC
Yichang Zhongxiang* (Note) H AEH3,000,0007T, RENFEERS - &
“E-CH+-A-t+—H  AR®500,0007

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. MR RAFEE)

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

(CONTINUED)
Place and date Equity interest Principal activities
of incorporation/ Registered/Issued attributable to and principal place
Name of company establishment and paid-up capital the Group of business
FEMBL K EMES BRI FEXER
ARE wEHRAH RBRER AEEELERE TEREHY
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
Bt R)EEER The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
BRAR(HEE) 17 December 2008 RMB5,000,000 management services,
the PRC
Hongkun Business H AR#5,000,0007T, RENEERRS - FE
Management Company ZEEN\FTZATER AR#5,000,0007T
Limited* (Note)
ERERAGEEEER The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
BRAR (M) 18 February 2016 Nil management services,
the PRC
Hongkun Valley* (Note) EF AE#5,000,0007T, RENEEERS - T
—E-RFZAT\R E3
TRERRIEES The PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
ERERAA (W) 19 February 2016 Nil management services,
the PRC
Cloud Era Enterprise Operation F ARH5,000,0007T,” REMEEERS -+
Management Company ZE-R"EZAThH z
Limited* (Note)
RERBEENEEEERAR(ME) The PRC RMB1,000,000/ 60% 60% Provision of property
21 July 2020 Nil management services,
the PRC
Chengde Hongkun* (Note) H AR#1,000,0007T,/ REDEERRE -+
“RCRELAZT-R z
Jiangsu Wanhao* (Note) The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
24 September 2003 Nil management Services,
N the PRC
TEER (W) ZTE=FAAZFTEA  AR¥5000,0007/ RENEERRTE - FE
Dongfang Yirun Medical Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000/ 65%  N/ATNEFA  Provision of medical sale
23 May 2016 ~RMB1,000,000 services, the PRC
Ry HHERARAR “EAFRAZTZA AR%10000007,/ U EREERY - PE
AR#1,000,0007T
Oriental Ideal Coast Yirun Community ~ The PRC RMB1,200,000/ 65%  N/ATNER  Provision of medical sale
Health Service Station Company 13 January 2017 RMB1,200,000 services, the PRC
Limited
RAREEER AL EE RS I AR#4,200,0007T,/ REEERFERE - e

BRAR

*

The English name is for identification purpose only.

AEH#1,200,0007T

Note: These companies were registered as a limited liability company in the

PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.
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33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-
cash addition to right-of-use assets RMB1,300,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the consideration
payable by the buyer of Tianjin Hongsheng of RMB4,200,000 should
be net off with the amount due from the Group of RMB6,910,000.

On 31 December 2022, the Group entered into an offsetting
agreement with Hongkun Weiye, a fellow subsidiary, pursuant to
which the trade and non-trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
(included in amounts from related parties) of RMB1,040,000 and
RMB14,519,000 respectively had been settled by offsetting with
the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries at aggregate amount
of RMB1,040,000 and RMB14,519,000 respectively as at 31
December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or capital commitments.

33.

34.

ab

-

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIEE

EXFRERS

HEZTZ—F+ZA=+—H &
EEEFRAREEFRSTILARE
1,300,0007T °

REBEE-Z=_—F+-_A=+—HULHF
B REBBREFEIMHOREARE
4,200,0007T - fE B fE U AN S B 3R IE A
6,910,000 T HHE 8

R=ZZE-_=—F+=-—A=+—8 4%
EsimEE(—HRRMBAR)E
RARSERE - Bt - BIRRARWEA
AINE 5 RIEE 5 A (G AU A
FFIER) AREE1,040,000T R A REE
14,519,000 LB B IR T ==
+Z A=+ —HEMNRRKBRRE
At Rl A ARY1,040,000t R AR
#14,519,0007TH T R AETE ©

RREEEFEE

RZZE-_—_F+=-A=+—8 ' ~%E
WEAMERIABBEREARNAIE -

EEEEZRERAT

)

(XL

TECFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—"F+-A=+—HILFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35. ADFHMBMRREK

COMPANY
2022 2021
B -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARTFr
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRZIEE 151,590 151,590
151,590 151,590
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Bank balances and cash RITHB RS 12,056 5,808
12,056 5,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables H A fERTRUE 912 1,232
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note a) FERTHI B A BIFIE (A ta) 9,732 1,038
10,644 2,270
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,412 3,538
NET ASSETS BEE 153,002 155,128
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR
Share capital N 3,650 3,650
Reserves (Note b) R (HEb) 149,352 151,478
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 153,002 155,128

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e P HmRMEE(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. A TWE AR TR (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note a: Miita -
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. ZEREREER - 28 RIREKERER -
Note b: Wtitb -
Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
B E BDEE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 R-E-——F—HF—H 179,495 (22,960) 156,535
Loss and total comprehensive FEBBREMAZAE
expense for the year - (5,057) (5,057)
At 31 December 2021 KW-_Z-_—%+=-A=+—8H 179,495 (28,017) 151,478
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEMEEMAX@E
loss for the year - (2,126) (2,126)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-A=+—H 179,495 (80,143) 149,352
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. HEHAREIE
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group REEZT-_—_F+-A=+—HItF
acquired several properties from its related parties, which were B NEBRBBHEEREMER
held by Hongkun Weiye, at a consideration of approximately BERAFBFHBENEETNOARE
RMB2,515,000. The amount of such consideration payable was 2,515,000 7T HY (B U i 7 EfE % o
offset against the amounts due from the related parties as disclosed ZAESFEC BB NA H I SRR
in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. 21 P4 FR 10 JE K B 75 IR B AR o
b

-

HEEEERERERAT —ZT-_FFH
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS me¥E

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F —ET-NF —T-TF —T-—F ZBIZH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFIT ARETIT AREFT AREFIT ARETFT

Revenue A 251,177 273,580 261,405 336,828 343,498
Gross profit ESAl 81,726 94,477 63,478 89,630 67,023
Net profit/(loss) FEFLE(ER) 37,221 25,878 20,762 31,207 (51,872)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES FREE RanR8E

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F ZE-NF —TTF —T-—F ZB_-F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ABEFT ARBTT ARBTT ARKTT AR¥ETR

Assets EE

Non-current assets IERBEE 7,751 11,139 24,207 87,378 101,121
Current assets MENEE 252,561 236,272 403,574 382,190 315,132
Total assets HEE 260,312 247 411 427,801 469,568 416,253
Equity and liabilities EEkEE

Non-current liabilities EMBAE 1,750 922 16 2,728 3,694
Current liabilities mEBaE 170,960 170,428 194,423 202,271 199,785
Total liabilities weEE 172,710 171,350 194,439 204,999 203,479
Total equity RS 87,602 76,061 233,362 264,569 212,774
Total equity and liabilities wESNBEE 260,312 247 411 427,801 469,568 416,253
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